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HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover was HK$1,829.5 million (2011: HK$1,665.9
million), up 9.8%

Profit was HK$130.6 million (2011: HK$123.8 million), up
5.4%

Proposed final dividend of HK38.0 cents per share and
a special final dividend of HK40.0 cents per share to
commemorate the 40th anniversary, representing a total
dividend per share for the year increased by 39% to
HK100.0 cents (2011: HK72.0 cents)

Gross profit margin was 13.4% (2011: 14.5%)
Return on average equity’ was 24.1% (2011: 24.6%)

Basic earnings per share were HK104.45 cents (2011:
HK98.55 cents)

The year 2012 marked the 40th anniversary of Fairwood,
our efforts had been recognised and obtained a number
of awards related to brand, service and human resources
management during the year
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Note 1:

Return on average equity is defined as profit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company excluding
the compensation received for surrender of a tenancy lease
and the gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale
against the average total equity at the beginning and the end
of the year

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

RHEIRE R

Interim results announcement

FREARR BUR (S B HA
Paid date of the interim dividend
EEEENT
Annual results announcement
TIEHHERR B P &R

- BRAFKE

— BREARHIMERIREE

Closure of register of members
— Annual general meeting

— Proposed final and special final dividends

BREFAE
Annual general meeting

REA R 5 Bl R ER B Bk 3 B B

Payable date of the final and special final dividends

—F——Ff+—A-t+hH
29 November 2011

—Z2——F+-A=+=A
23 December 2011
—FRNAZ++tH
27 June 2012
“FhA+tBE-_ZE——FhA+—H
(aﬁéfﬁi)

—E-—HAATNBE-ZT-—_FAA-TH
(BEEE®X)

7 September 2012 to 11 September 2012
(both days inclusive)

18 September 2012 to 20 September 2012
(both days inclusive)

——FNAA+—H
11 September 2012
—F+HA=BZZA

On or before 3 October 2012

RIREEBER DT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual results of Fairwood Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group") for the year ended 31 March 2012.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover
of HK$1,829.5 million, up 9.8% over the previous year (2011:
HK$1,665.9 million). Gross profit margin registered a slight decrease
10 13.4% (2011: 14.5%). Profit attributable to equity shareholders
was HK$130.6 million (2011: HK$123.8 million), representing a
rise of 5.4%. Excluding the compensation received for surrender
of a tenancy lease of HK$13.5 million and the gain of HK$15.6
million on property disposal last year, profit from core operating
activities registered a year-on-year increase of 8.2% to HK$117.1
million (2011: HK$108.2 million). Basic earnings per share were
HK104.45 cents (2011: HK98.55 cents).

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend of HK38.0 cents
(2011: HK32.0 cents) per share and a special final dividend of
HK40.0 cents (2011: HK12.0 cents) per share for the year ended 31
March 2012. Together with the interim dividend of HK22.0 cents
(2011: HK20.0 cents and a special interim dividend of HK8.0 cents)
per share paid during the year, the total dividend for the year ended
31 March 2012 amounts to HK100.0 cents (2011: HK72.0 cents)
per share, representing a total distribution of approximately 95% of
the Group's profit for the year. The proposed final and special final
dividends will be paid on or before Wednesday, 3 October 2012 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of
the Company at the close of business on Thursday, 20 September
2012.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong

The Hong Kong market continued to deliver satisfactory results
in the 2011/12 financial year, with both turnover and same store
sales achieving pleasing growth, contributed by our higher value
innovative products, astute pricing strategy, and well-planned
network expansion. The operating environment was challenging
partially due to the minimum wage legislation coming into effect,
along with a continuous rise of food costs and rental levels. However,
we are delighted that we managed to overcome the hurdles and
maintained a solid gross profit margin.

Over the years, our visionary management team has evaluated
a variety of means to improve competitiveness. The central food
processing plant, the SAP Enterprise Resources Planning System,
and the flexible scheduling shift were measures that enabled us to
stand out from our peers and sustain bottom-line growth despite
changes in the market environment.

Our central food processing plant in Tai Po is now in full operation,
standardising food quality and delivering an assured supply of safe,
high-quality products at competitive prices. Through continuous
efforts in improving efficiency and economies of scale, we have
been able to lower both food and labour costs further.

In addition to our core fast food business, we have developed more
specialty restaurant brands targeting different consumer segments.
Kenting Tea House, Buddies Café and Curry Factory have been in
operation in the Hong Kong market. Our plan is to introduce these
specialty restaurants to Mainland China when the business models
are strengthened.
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Mainland China

Fairwood has adopted an expansion strategy in Mainland China
during the year. Recognised for our quality, our stores are highly
popular among the locals, and we have also extended our network
of restaurants to major northern cities such as Beijing and Tianjin.
Over the years, we have made headway in understanding the market
by conducting market research which has enabled us to successfully
capture local consumers’ palates and preferences. The results of our
efforts have been positive with an excellent sales growth of 19.1%
recorded for the past year. We will continue to expand our business
and to strengthen the pillars of our brand in Mainland China.

Network

During the year under review, the Group opened 10 new fast food
stores including 6 in Hong Kong and 4 in Mainland China. As at
31 March 2012, the Group has a total of 108 stores in operation
in Hong Kong, including 101 fast food stores, 2 Buddies Cafes and
5 specialty restaurants. In Mainland China, the Group operates 19
fast food stores.

Corporate Recognition

We believe that people and customers should always come first,
and thus have continuously strived to satisfy the needs of customers
through the quality of both the food and the dining experience to
deliver the pledge of our brand. The management is delighted to
see its efforts acknowledged by the business community through
various accolades received during the year. The Group has been
honoured with awards in three main sectors — Brand, Service, and
Human Resources Management. Our efforts have been recognised
in the brand-related awards that we have garnered as follows
during the year:
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“Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards 2011" by The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and Hong Kong
Brand Development Council

“Hong Kong Proud Brands Award” by The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and Ming Pao Newspapers Limited

Excellent service can enhance customer loyalty through offering a
comfortable and enjoyable dining experience. Our commitment has
been rewarded by the following service-related awards we received
during the year:

“2011 Hong Kong Awards for Industries: Customer Service
Grand Award” by the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association

“Service & Courtesy Award” by the Hong Kong Retail
Management Association

“Customer Service Excellence Award” by the Hong Kong
Association for Customer Service Excellence

“Hong Kong International Airport Customer Service Excellence
Programme: Team Award and Individual Award"” by The Airport
Authority Hong Kong

“2011 Total Quality Service Regime: Quality Service Award in
the General Retail — Food and Beverage (Self-serve) Category”
by MTR Corporation

By adhering to our motto: “Enjoy Great Food, Live a Great Life”, we
care for our employees as well as our customers. We are pleased
that our efforts in implementing family-friendly employment
policies and practices within and beyond the working environment
have been acknowledged in the following citations and awards:

“2011 Distinguished Family-Friendly Employer” by the Family
Council

"ERB Manpower Development Scheme Award”
Employees Retraining Board

“Catering Industry Safety Awards” by the Labour Department
and Occupational Safety & Health Council

by the
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PROSPECTS

As we embark on our 40th year of operation, we will continue to
step up our efforts in gaining insights into consumer preferences
while closely monitoring the market situation in Hong Kong and
Mainland China so that we could align our strategies to achieve
the optimal performance. We are optimistic that we can advance
our business forward in this year of historical significance for the
Group.

At the same time, we will remain committed to our stakeholders
and the community. In particular, we will further strengthen our
relationships with our consumers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders.

Our efforts have earned us continuous support from customers
over the course of four decades. Our first priority has always been
to deliver a consistently excellent dining experience by providing
quality food and service at an affordable price. Innovative delicious
products, exciting marketing promotions and creative advertising
campaigns are also planned for the coming year to attract more
customers. Underpinning all of our efforts is our unwavering
commitment to soliciting our customers’ opinions and endeavouring
our best to improve our menu and products to meet their preference
and maintain their loyalty.

At Fairwood, our suppliers are important to our success and we
treat them as our long term partners. We will continue to adopt
a global procurement strategy to source authentic and quality
raw materials and to proactively control food costs. Furthermore,
it is highly essential for us to maintain good relationships while
closely monitoring both our new and existing vendors to ensure an
uninterrupted supply of tasty food that our customers have come
to expect.
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One of the most important factors behind our success is our highly
experienced and loyal employees. Our employees are treated as
members of a big family; their job satisfaction is thus one of our
key concerns. Towards this end, the management encourages
work-life balance by introducing internal and external activities
for colleagues’ benefit and enjoyment. Moreover, we continue to
provide comprehensive on-the-job training and reward our top
performing employees accordingly.

Last but not least, we believe ongoing communication and
operational transparency are the keys to sustaining our relationship
with our shareholders. As always, we will pay attention to our
shareholders’ advice, strengthen our business model, improve our
competitiveness, and achieve satisfactory returns in appreciation of
their loyalty and support.

APPRECIATION

Stepping into Fairwood’s 40th anniversary, | would like to once
again express my deepest appreciation to our dedicated staff
and management team. It has not been easy tackling the various
challenges over the years, yet hand-in-hand we have managed to
weather through good and bad times. | also wish to extend my
gratitude to our customers, fellow directors, business partners and
shareholders, for their valuable contributions and support down
through the years. I am proud to be part of the Fairwood family, and
we look forward to celebrating more decades of success together.

#RE

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
HITFEE

Executive Chairman

B —E—_FA-++tH
Hong Kong, 27 June 2012
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2012, the Group had total assets of HK$806.8
million (2011: HK$780.9 million). The Group's working capital
was HK$111.5 million (2011: HK$84.0 million), represented by
total current assets of HK$355.9 million (2011: HK$334.6 million)
against total current liabilities of HK$244.4 million (2011: HK$250.6
million). Current ratio, being the proportion of total current assets
against total current liabilities, was 1.5 (2011: 1.3). Total equity was
HK$503.7 million (2011: HK$467.7 million).

The Group finances its business with internally generated cash
flows and available banking facilities. At 31 March 2012, the Group
had bank deposits and cash amounting to HK$265.3 million (2011:
HK$253.7 million), representing an increase of 4.6% from 2011.
Most bank deposits and cash were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, United States dollars and Renminbi.

At 31 March 2012, the Group had total bank loans of HK$31.0
million denominated in Hong Kong dollars (2011: HK$41.9 million
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi). All of the
Group's bank borrowings were subject to the floating rate basis and
the maturity of borrowings are up to 2019. The unutilised banking
facilities were HK$271.1 million (2011: HK$270.6 million). The
gearing ratio of the Group dropped to 6.2% (2011: 9.0%), which
was calculated based on the total bank loans over total equity.

Profitability

Return on average equity was 24.1% (2011: 24.6%), being profits
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company excluding the
compensation received for surrender of a tenancy lease and the
gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale against the
average total equity at the beginning and the end of the year.
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Capital Expenditure

During the year, the capital expenditure was approximately HK$68.4
million (2011: HK$66.5 million) and these amounts were mainly
used for new and existing shops renovation.

Financial Risk Management

The Group’s receipts and expenditures were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The impact of the fluctuation in
exchange rate is immaterial to the Group’s financial position.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
cash at bank that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States dollars
and Renminbi. As United States dollar is pegged to Hong Kong
dollar, the Group does not expect any significant movements in the
United States dollar/Hong Kong dollar exchange rate. The Group
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary
to address short term imbalances.

For the purpose of offsetting the exposure of the interest rate
fluctuation, the Group had entered certain forward interest rate
swaps with financial institutions. The swaps were arranged to match
the maturity of the repayment schedule of certain bank loans with
the maturity over the next 4.5 years and had the fixed swap rates
ranging from 2.63% t0 2.74%.

Charges on Group'’s Assets

At 31 March 2012, the net book value of properties pledged as
security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group amounted to HK$48.3 million (2011: HK$48.3 million) and
no bank deposits and cash was used to pledge any loans or banking
facilities.

Commitments

The Group’s capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012
were HK$45.7 million (2011: HK$41.4 million). Included in capital
commitment outstanding at 31 March 2012 was an amount of
HK$20.2 million (2011: HK$23.7 million) for the future development
of the central food processing plant. In addition, the Group had
other outstanding commitments of HK$0.9 million at 31 March
2012 (2011: HK$8.6 million) in respect of the contracting fee for
operation of a fast food restaurant not provided for in the financial
statements.
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Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2012, guarantees are given to banks by the Company
in respect of mortgage loans and other banking facilities extended
to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider
it probable that a claim will be made against the Company
under the guarantee arrangements. The maximum liability of the
Company at the end of the reporting period under the guarantee
is the amount of the facilities drawn down by all the subsidiaries
that are covered by the guarantees, being HK$77.6 million (2011:
HK$84.0 million).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably measured and
there is no transaction price.

Employee Information

At 31 March 2012, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 4,600 (2011: 4,600). Staff costs for the year
were approximately HK$506.1 million (2011: HK$443.4 million).
Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their job nature,
qualifications and experience. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed annually based on performance appraisals and other
relevant factors.

The Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and bonus to eligible staff, based on the performance
of the Group and the individual employees. Also, the Group has
committed to provide related training programme to improve the
quality, competence and skills of all staff.
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Executive Directors

Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung", aged 60, is the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He graduated from the Parsons School of Design
with a Bachelor Degree in Fine Arts and also attended a course
on food and beverage management at New York University.
After completion of his studies in the U.S.A. in 1977, Mr Lo
returned to Hong Kong and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration. In 1981, Mr Lo joined Fairwood Fast Food Limited.
In 1991, he played a major role in the listing of the Company.
Mr Lo was the Managing Director of the Company from 1991 to
1999. He was appointed the Chairman and Chief Executive of the
Company in January 2000. On 1 January 2009, Mr Lo relinquished
his role as Chief Executive but remained as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr Lo is a director of Neblett Investments Limited which
has discloseable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Mr Chan Chee Shing, aged 58, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. He received a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Economics
from the University of Manitoba, Canada in 1977 and a Master of
Business Administration Degree from the University of East Asia,
Macauin 1987. Mr Chan has over 30 years’ experience in marketing.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked as a senior executive for a
restaurant group which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr Chan joined the Group
in 1995. He was appointed a Director of the Company in January
1998 and was appointed Chief Executive Officer of the Company
on 1 January 2009. Mr Chan is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company.

Ms Mak Yee Mei, aged 45, is the Executive Director of the
Company. She holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics,
a Master of Science Degree in Finance and a Master Degree in
Business Administration. She is an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants as well as a Fellow
Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms
Mak has extensive experience in auditing, accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Company, she had held senior
management positions in several companies the securities of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Ms Mak joined the Company in
2004 and was appointed Executive Director, Company Secretary
and Authorized Representative of the Company on 1 January 2010.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
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Non-executive Director

Mr Ng Chi Keung*#, aged 63, is the Non-executive Director of the
Company. He holds a Master Degree in Business Administration. He
is an Associate Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. Mr Ng has over 30 years' experience in finance
and management. Prior to joining the Group, he held senior
management positions with a number of well-known local and
overseas multinational companies. Mr Ng joined the Group in 1994
and was appointed a Director of the Company in November 1995.
He was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company
from 1 January 2010 following his retirement from the Group. At
the same time, Mr Ng was also appointed as a member of the
Audit Committee and remains as a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr Ng is an Independent Non-
executive Director of Soundwill Holdings Limited which is listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

MrJoseph ChanKaiNin** aged 64, wasappointed anIndependent
Non-executive Director in 1991. He graduated from The University
of Hong Kong, the University of Strathclyde and The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree, a
Diploma in Social Work, a Master of Business Administration Degree
and a Master of Education Degree. He is a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Human Resources Management. Mr Chan has over
30 years’ experience in human resources development in public,
commercial and educational sectors. He is currently Director of the
Student Development Services, City University of Hong Kong.

Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen*, aged 59, was appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2000. He holds
a Doctorate Degree in Business Administration from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, an MBA Degree from the University
of Calgary in Canada and a Master of Buddhist Studies from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants and the Society of Certified
Management Accountants of Canada. Dr Lau had over 12 years of
management and accounting experience in the private and public
sectors in Canada prior to returning to Hong Kong in 1987. Dr
Lau is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive of Giordano
International Limited and was an Independent Non-executive
Director of Hsin Chong Construction Group Limited from 2002 to
2010, both of which are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He also serves as an ex-officio member of the Faculty
Advisory Committee of the Faculty of Business at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University as well as Adjunct Professor of Marketing at
City University of Hong Kong.
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Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo*, aged 47, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director in November 2008. He graduated from
the University of Western Ontario, Canada with an Honours
Degree in Business Administration in 1986. Mr Tsoi is an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of Varitronix International
Limited, an Executive Director of ReOrient Group Limited, a Non-
executive Director of China WindPower Group Limited and Zhidao
International (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as “Ocean Grand
Holdings Limited”), all of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. He is also the Deputy Chairman of the supervisory
board of Data Modul AG, which is listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange.

Mr Peter Wan Kam To*", aged 59, was appointed an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and the Chairman of the
Company’'s Audit Committee in September 2009. He is a Fellow
Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr Wan was a
former partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong and China
firm. He has been a practicing accountant in Hong Kong for over
30 years and has extensive experience in auditing, finance, advisory
and management. Mr Wan is currently an Independent Director
of Mindray Medical International Limited (a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange, USA) and RDA Microelectronics, Inc. (a
company listed on the NASDAQ). Mr Wan is also an Independent
Non-executive Director of several companies listed on the Stock
Exchange, namely China Resources Land Limited, Dalian Port (PDA)
Company Limited, GreaterChina Professional Services Limited and
Huaneng Renewables Corporation Limited. He was formerly an
Independent Non-executive Director of Real Gold Mining Limited,
which is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

*  Member of the Audit Committee

#  Member of the Remuneration Committee

Member of the Nomination Committee

N
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) has pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda. Its registered office is
situated at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda and principal place of business is situated at 2/F, TRP
Commercial Centre, 18 Tanner Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments. The principal activities and
other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
131 to 133 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in
note 3(b) to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of
turnover and purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers represent less than 30% (2011: less than
30%) of the Group’s total turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 43 to 133.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$130,567,000 (2011: HK$123,842,000) has been transferred
to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

An interim dividend of HK22.0 cents (2011: an interim dividend of
HK20.0 cents and a special interim dividend of HK8.0 cents) per
share was paid on 23 December 2011. The Board now recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK38.0 cents and a special final
dividend of HK40.0 cents (2011: a final dividend of HK32.0 cents
and a special final dividend of HK12.0 cents) per share in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2012.
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Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$8,000 (2011: HK$66,000).

Fixed Assets
Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in note 11 to
the financial statements.

Share Capital

During the year, the Company purchased shares of the Company on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Shares were repurchased during the year to reduce the dilutive
effect of granting share options. Details of movements in share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 24(d) to
the financial statements.

Save as set out in note 24(d)(ii) to the financial statements, there
were no other purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s
listed securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

Directors
The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the financial
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To

In accordance with Bye-laws 109 and 189(viii) of the Company, Mr
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To shall retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and Mr Tony Tsoi Tong
Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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EEMESTHABRAKRD « #HM Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
B REREHERRE Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
BARNBIZB(E SR REEEG ) ([FHBK  As at 31 March 2012, the interests or short positions of the
Bl ) E32E M EHEFHELMEET - =ik Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
A EMBEITAZERETE %X%E’J’Hﬁ—r in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company

A1) (M1Z22EpAI ) AE MG X RA R and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
RETEH - AR 75@%%&:&‘%‘??&)\5@ of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
HMEHEENR_E——F=H="+—H#% in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
BARRQFREBEEB(BRFEFEFHENE  Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
XVEBFTELH e 2= ) BORR 1D ~ #BRENR D (&M  and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

BRI AR ¢ Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were
as follows:
(a) EERA B ELR (a) Interests in the Company
SREEBS I THEER
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each

RIBER
AR HEBT
HAEE RPEE
BARRZ KEzE AREs HtEx  ROHE e BOk

Number of

underlying
shares Percentage
pursuant of total
Personal Family  Corporate Other to Share issued
interests interests interests interests Options Total shares
ek Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 109,000 - - 55,435,384 - 55,544,384 44.61%

GE
(Note 1)

B Chan Chee Shing 15,000 - - ~1,000000 1,015000  082%
Rtk Mak Yee Mei 680,000 - - - 320,000 1,000,000 0.80%
MiEET - Ut 5 AR {9 FANeblett Investments Note 1: These shares were held by Neblett Investments Limited
Limited ([Neblett]) % CFJ Holdings (“Neblett”) and CFJ Holdings Limited (“CFJ"). The companies
Limited ([CRID B - ZF R A5 are beneficially owned by two separate trusts of which Mr
AIEBMENEFRGTERANEER Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr Dennis
HERMETMERES - G Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trusts as a
FREERZEEENNBEER Y discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of the
REOER X B REARTNNAITE Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares held by

& MU AR VEE B Neblett X CFIFTHS Neblett and CFJ.
BRMOHRES -
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
(continued)

(b) Interests in Fairwood Fast Food Limited (“FFFL")

SREEEBEIOTNEREEELER 7
Non-voting deferred shares of HK$10 each

BAER RikfER AEER HihiE wmE
Personal Family  Corporate Other

interests interests interests interests Total

EFS Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 11,500 - - 279,357 290,857
(F5E2)
(Note 2)

fizE2 - 1t % A% 13 FAPengto International Note 2: These shares were held by Pengto International Limited

Limited ([Pengto]) 5 © A FE
—EANERBCEANBREEER
WM ERES - BFRBTER
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& XERADNBNRITERE - 8§
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(“Pengto”), a company beneficially owned by a trust of
which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object. Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung, by virtue of his interest in the trust as
a discretionary object and as the Executive Chairman of the
Company, was deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Pengto.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Apart from the foregoing and those disclosed under the section
“Share Option Scheme” below, as at 31 March 2012, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of their spouses
or children under eighteen years of age had any other interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had been entered in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Details of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests under the
Company’s share option scheme are also set out in the section
“Share Option Scheme” below.
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Share Option Scheme

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated its then share
option scheme that was adopted on 18 September 2002
(the 2002 Option Scheme”) and adopted a new share option
scheme (the “2011 Option Scheme”) on the same date. As a result
of the termination, no further options may be granted under the
2002 Option Scheme but the options that have been granted
and remained outstanding as of that date under the 2002 Option
Scheme remain effective. A summary of the 2002 Option Scheme
and 2011 Option Scheme is set out below:

(a) 2002 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2002 Option Scheme was to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses; to provide additional incentives to any
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries or any consultant,
agent, representative, adviser, supplier of goods or services,
customer, contractor, business ally and joint venture partner
(the “2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to
promote the long term financial success of the Company by
aligning the interests of option holders to shareholders of the
Company.

Under the 2002 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised, at
their discretion, to invite any Director (including Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Director) or any of the
2002 Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee to take up options to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price which shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the 5 business days immediately preceding the date of offer
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

As at 7 September 2011 (being the date of termination),
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
granted under the 2002 Option Scheme is 12,660,828 shares,
being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
23 August 2006, the date on which the refreshment of the
mandate limit under the 2002 Option Scheme was approved by
the shareholders of the Company. The maximum entitlement
for any one participant under the 2002 Option Scheme shall
not in any 12 months period up to the date of grant exceed 1%
of the Company’s shares in issue.
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Share Option Scheme (continued)
(b) 2011 Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2011 Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’'s businesses; to provide incentives or rewards to
any employee, Director (including Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Director) or officer of any member
of the Group or any related trust or company (the “2011
Option Scheme Qualifying Grantee”) and to promote the long
term financial success of the Company by aligning the interests
of option holders to shareholders of the Company.

Under the 2011 Option Scheme, Directors were authorised,
at their discretion, to invite any of the 2011 Option Scheme
Qualifying Grantee to take up options to subscribe for shares in
the Company at a price which shall not be less than whichever
is the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii)
the nominal value of a share.

As at 31 March 2012, the maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2011
Option Scheme is 12,563,528 shares being 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 7 September 2011. The
maximum entitlement for any one participant under the 2011
Option Scheme shall not in any 12 months period up to the
date of grant exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in issue.

The life of the 2011 Option Scheme is 10 years commencing on
7 September 2011 and expiring on 6 September 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2012,

(i) No option was granted under the 2011 Option Scheme; and
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MERxigstE(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(iy RRAREENEERE-_ZSZT_FHEA (i) the Directors and employees of the Company had the following
ETE - MREBEITER TAREAR interests in options to subscribe for shares of the Company
RARMD(RZZE—ZF=A=+—01 (market value per share at 31 March 2012 was HK$12.58
FRMEABE1258 T (T ——F (2011: HK$11.10)) granted for HK$1 consideration under the
EE11.107T) ) KR - Em#EE T3 2002 Option Scheme. The options are unlisted. Fach option
o BIREYRET - FHAEABREER gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of
BIEBERERBIRAARSREAESEE HK$1 each of the Company.
1T E B

RoB--f% R=B-Z% SHEBRE
MA-H ZB=t-H SEBRE  TEAAN
AN ERRTH EREMN  ERGED KTEM BT EAEH ShRinE

BRESR BREHE sl TEEY BRESE BREHE BEREEE  SROEE BRUGE  THRGE
Weighted
average
price of
Closing price ~ closing price
Number of ~ Number of Number of ~ Numberof ~ Number of per share per share
options options options options options immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding Exercise  beforedate  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at31March price per ofgrant  of exercise
201 the year granted period  theyear the year 2012 share  of options  of options
REm(ES) 1,000,000 - CEEfE IR-E-ZF - - 1000000  AMe26T 6287 -
Chan Chee Shing (Director) mANA MA-RE HK$6.26 HK$6.28
8 April 2009 S
“A=T-HEE
P REE0%17E
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period

from 1 April 2010
t0 31 March 2016

BaT(ES) 400,000 - 3% IR=3——F - 80,000) 0000 s  EESOTT  BEI68T
Mak Yee Mei (Director) =A-H —-R—RZE HK$8.08 HK$8.07 HK$11.68

1 March 2010 2

T-A=1+—-RHE

ARHEA%{THE

Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%

during the period

from 1 January 2011

t0 31 December 2016

E& 800,000 - IEINF ARZZ-FF (480,000 (320,000 - BEelr  B%esn  EEI168T
Employee MA7A MALRZE HK$6.30 HK$6.23 HKS$11.68

6 April 2009 “3tf

MAMmAHE

ARHEA%{TE

Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%

during the period

from 5 April 2010

to4 April 2017
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R=B--% RZB-Z% SRERE
mA-A ZA=1-H SHBRE  TEAMY
AN FARTH FRERE TR i EFAAN BRmE
BREZE BREHE EFA TEAE BREZE BREHE EREEE  SROFE SRUGE  THRGE
Weighted
average
price of
Closing price  closing price
Number of ~ Number of Number of ~ Numberof  Number of per share per share
options options options options options immediately  immediately
outstanding granted lapsed exercised  outstanding Exercise  beforedate  before date
at 1 April during Date Exercisable during during  at31March price per of grant  of exercise
201 the year granted period  the year the year 2012 share  of options  of options
= 2,358,000 - ZEENE ARZE-TF (80000  (600000)  1680,000  EM626T  EH628T  AEEILI0T
Employees TMANA MA-RE HKS6.26 HK$6.28 HK$11.10
8 April 2009 ZEF
=A=t+-0%M
ARHE20%TR
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 April 2010
t0 31 March 2016
g8 95,000 - i3 TR=F-%F (60,000) (35,000) - Me2m  E¥east  EK1078T
Employee AAMA MA-BZ HK$6.29 HKS6.18 HK$10.78
4 May 2009 S
—A=T-HEE
P REE20%77E
Exercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 April 2010
t0 31 March 2016
] 90,000 - ZIENE AR-F-%F - (30,000 60000  EH769m  EEI30T  AB1146T
Employee tA+A tA-A% HK$7.69 HKS730  HK$11.46
10 July 2009 “35F
AR=THER
ARBE%ITR
Bxercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 1 July 2010
1030 June 2016
E& 50,000 - IE-%F ARZE——% - - 50000 #1096 E&10.607T -
Employee TZATtA TZATtRZE HK$10.96  HK$10.60
17 December 2N\§
010 +-ATREHHE
AEEBZ%TE
Bxercisable in
five tranches of 20%
during the period
from 17 December 2011

t0 16 November 2018
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FRRREE R ()
Rog--%
mA-A
RTEH
BRERE

Number of
options
outstanding
at 1 April
2011

ERRFH
BRERE

Number of
options
granted

during
the year

&FH

Date
granted

Share Option Scheme (continued)

e

Exercisable
period

FRERH
BREZE

Number of
options
lapsed
during
the year

FRiTEN
BRERE

Number of
options
exercised
during
the year

R-2-2F
ZA=1-H
RITRE
BRERA

Number of
options
outstanding
at 31 March
2012

BRTER

Exercise
price per
share

RERRE
RTEAM
BRUHE

Closing price
per share
immediately
before date
of grant

of options

SHRERE
TERAN
SRmE
FoUmE
Weighted
average
price of
closing
before date
of exercise
of options

E8 100,000
Employee

28 -

Employee

B8 B

Employee

(28 -

Employee

RREEERRDF
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800,000

100,000

800,000

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

“IF
ZRt7A
16 February

2011

%
mA=+/\A
28 April 2011

%
MA=+)\H
28 April 2011

Ik
filzpile
9 May 2011

AR-E-ZF
ZAtREE
Btk
—RtHAHE
ARER0%T6E
Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%

during the period

from 16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017

AR=F--F
mA-tN\BZ
“ENE
RAZ++AEE
ARBE%ITE
Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%

during the period

from 28 April 2012

to 27 May 2019

IR=5—%
th-HZ
ZERE

~AZTREH

ARHEA0%{THE
Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%

during the period
from 1 July 2011
1030 June 2016

IR-E-CF
RANAZE
-y K3

R R\REE
2 RER0%7(E
Exercisable in

five tranches of 20%

during the period
from 9 May 2012
0.8 May 2019

(80,000)

(20,000)

100,000

800,000

800,000

AE1090T
HK$10.90

BE10917T
HK$10.91

EE10917T
HK$10.91

7110.88C
HK$10.88

EE10927
HK$10.92

10847
HK$10.84

510847
HK$10.84

EE1082T
HK$10.82

HE1T767
HK$11.76
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(p)ii)
and note 21 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations within the meaning
of the SFO.

Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the
Company

As at 31 March 2012, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company, were as
follows:

BEER/R HE®T
BEEE R B

B AR 43 [Epalse

Shares directly Percentage
and/or of total

indirectly held issued shares

(i) Neblett(PfizET) (i) Neblett (Note 1)

(i) CRI(PfEE2)

(i) Winning Spirit International
Corporation (Fff#E1)

(iv) HSBC International Trustee
Limited (Ffi=E1)

(v) HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands)
Limited (B 5%2)

(vi) Allard Partners Limited

48,775,384 39.18%
(i) CFJ (Note 2) 6,660,000 5.35%
(iii) Winning Spirit International 48,775,384 39.18%
Corporation (Note 1)
(iv) HSBC International Trustee 48,775,384 39.18%
Limited (Note 1)
(v) HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) 6,660,000 5.35%
Limited (Note 2)
(vi) Allard Partners Limited 12,632,500 10.15%
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Substantial Interests in the Share Capital of the
Company (continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

These interests represented the same block of shares directly held
by Neblett. Winning Spirit International Corporation owned 100%
interest in Neblett and was therefore deemed to be interested in
the shares directly held by Neblett. HSBC International Trustee
Limited, in its capacity as a trustee of a trust of which Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary object, owned 100% interest
in Winning Spirit International Corporation and was therefore
deemed to be interested in the shares directly held by Neblett;
and

these interests represented the same block of shares directly held
by CFJ. HSBC Trustee (Cook Islands) Limited, in its capacity as a
trustee of a trust of which Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a discretionary
object, owned 100% interest in CFJ and was therefore deemed to
be interested in the shares directly held by CFJ.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, no other interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company were recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31
March 2012.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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Continuing Connected Transactions

The particulars of the following continuing connected transactions
of the Group are set out below in compliance with the reporting
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(a) Tenancy agreement with New Champion International
Limited (“New Champion”)
As detailed in note 28(b) to the financial statements, FFFL,
a subsidiary of the Company, leased a property from New
Champion with a lease term of three years from 10 April 2009
to 9 April 2012 for the operation of a fast food restaurant. On 31
October 2011, such lease was renewed for a further three years
from 10 April 2012. As New Champion is an associate of Mr
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the entering
into the lease constituted continuing connected transaction for
the Company. Details of rent and deposits paid by FFFL relating
to the property for the above transaction are as follows:

—E-CF =%

2012 2011

5 5

HK$'000 HK$'000

AEEHRE Rent for the year 1,440 1,440
REZA=+—H0HESES Rental deposits at 31 March 360 360

(b) BEVARAF (B ) WHAERR
IE 4 B 765 33 3% I FE28(q) P RF At - K IR
AREREBEIEAIEYE - AKE—
REMREZMARENREE 67
MER-_T——F=A—HEAHB=
F-HREYRERGLE(XARAE
FINBEA  ZHEHARRBKTE
BERS KRERERZVEZR S
ENHEERIREFHBWT

(b) Tenancy agreement with Hibony Limited (“Hibony")

As detailed in note 28(c) to the financial statements, FFFL leased
a property from Hibony for three years from 1 March 2012 for
the operation of a fast food restaurant that had to be relocated
due to urban renewal. As Hibony is an associate of Mr Dennis
Lo Hoi Yeung (a Director of the Company), the entering into
the lease constituted continuing connected transaction for the
Company. Details of rent and deposits paid by FFFL relating to
the property for the above transaction are as follows:

—2-=F —T——%

2012 2011

Fr T

HK$'000 HK$'000

REEHES Rent for the year 208 -
R=A=+—BNEsERe Rental deposits at 31 March 660 -
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Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

In compliance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in connection
with the above continuing connected transactions, the Independent
Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the
transactions with New Champion and Hibony (the “Transactions”)
have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable than those available to or from independent third
parties;

(i) in accordance with the terms of agreements governing the
Transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate value of the Transactions for the year ended 31
March 2012 has not exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
value.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided
by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as the transactions disclosed in the section headed " Continuing
Connected Transactions”, no contract of significance to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal
statutory compensation.

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and the laws in Bermuda.

Bank Loans
Particulars of bank loans of the Group at 31 March 2012 are set out
in note 19 to the financial statements.

Five-Year Group Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 134 and
135 of the annual report.

Investment Properties
Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are shown on
page 136 of the annual report.

Retirement Scheme

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars of the MPF Scheme
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are covered
by appropriate local defined contribution retirement schemes
pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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By order of the Board

=B
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
#HITEE

Executive Chairman

& —T——FXA-++H
Hong Kong, 27 June 2012
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Auditor
KPMG retire and, beingeligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Fairwood Holdings Limited
(the "Company”) is committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance practices to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2012, save
and except that the Chairman and/or Managing Director of the
Company are not subject to retirement by rotation, details of which
and the reasons for the deviation are stated below.

Following the announcement of consultation conclusion on the
review of the CG Code and associated Listing Rules in October 2011,
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
introduced a number of amendments to the CG Code and
associated Listing Rules that are to be effective in 2012 (”Revised
Code"”). This report also describes the number of requirements
under the Revised Code that the Company has adopted.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities transactions by
the Directors of the Company (the “Directors”). Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed their compliance
with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout
the year ended 31 March 2012.

Board of Directors

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors have taken decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times. The Board recognizes
that corporate governance should be the collective responsibility of
all Directors, as such, it adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions that are in line with the Revised Code.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal controls,
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors have been consulted on all major and material matters
of the Company. With the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, the Executive Chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive
adequate and reliable information in a timely manner. Directors
may choose to take independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon making request
to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Executive Committee which
comprises the three Executive Directors and the senior management
of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the above-
mentioned officers.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises the following
Directors:—

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman)
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer)
Mak Yee Mei

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung

Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)")
Joseph Chan Kai Nin

Peter Lau Kwok Kuen

Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo

Peter Wan Kam To
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Board of Directors (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The representation of INEDs is more than
one third of the Board. A list containing the names of the Directors
with their roles and functions has been published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Biographical details of all
Directors are set out on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report. There
is no relationship among Directors of the Board and in particular,
between the Executive Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company has received from each of the INED an annual
confirmation in writing of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of
any relationship or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of the independent judgment of the INEDs. Accordingly,
the Company considers that all the INEDs are independent.

Four full Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 March
2012 and attendance record of each Director is set out below:—

HERE, FEAH
No. of meetings attended/held

BITES
‘R (BITLE)
BRAERK (TR EL)

FUTES
REH

BYFBITES
BREEHF
SIEHE
BERZ
FERH

Executive Directors

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung (Executive Chairman) 4/4
Chan Chee Shing (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Mak Yee Mei 4/4

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 3/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

Joseph Chan Kai Nin 4/4
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 4/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 3/4
Peter Wan Kam To 4/4
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Board of Directors (continued)

All Directors well understand their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of annual and
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The statement of the auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of
the Company is set out on pages 41 and 42 in the independent
auditor’'s report. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries,
confirm that there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

On 11 January 2012, the Board established the Nomination
Committee with written terms of reference which are in line with
the Revised Code and are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders upon
request. The Nomination Committee comprises two INEDs, Dr Peter
Lau Kwok Kuen and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size and
composition of the Board, identifies and recommends to the
Board suitable candidate(s) to stand for election by shareholders
at annual general meeting, or when necessary, to fill vacancies on
the Board.

The Board is empowered under the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”) to appoint any person as a director of the Company
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. For
procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director, please refer to the procedures posted on the Company’s
website.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors (continued)
According to the Bye-laws, (i) new Directors appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the first annual general
meeting after their appointment and shall then be eligible for re-
election; and (ii) at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors (other than any Director holding office as Chairman or
Managing Director) for the time being or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office provided that each Director
(other than any Director holding office as Chairman or Managing
Director) including those appointed for a specific term shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A copy of an up-to-date consolidated version of the Company’s
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws are available at the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Currently, all Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
by the shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
Messrs Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung and Chan Chee Shing respectively
whose roles are segregated and are not exercised by the same
individual.

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years; however,
the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company are not
subject to retirement by rotation under the Bye-laws. The Board
considers that the exemption of both the Chairman and the
Managing Director (the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company
from such retirement by rotation provisions would provide the
Group with strong and consistent leadership, efficient use of
resources, effective planning, formulation and implementation of
long-term strategies and business plans. The Board believes that it
would be in the best interest of the Company for such Directors to
continue to be exempted from retirement by rotation provisions.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference that have been revised to be in line with the
Revised Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders upon request.
The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs, Mr Joseph
Chan Kai Nin and Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen and one Non-executive
Director, Mr Ng Chi Keung. Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management and other related matters. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee met once to review the remuneration
of Directors.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE, EHEAH
No. of meetings attended/held

BYFHTES
BREEF (/%)
2B

FHTES
K&

FRERE

BERREEKBBEE—RFNTESTRER
TER=BBUFATESREF AL
ERZAERFRELLE - BERLZEGHF
BEALRETR SFAZLBITMRE

2
R

BZZBENIZREERERZESEH
2R BHEMBHRELRE  UEEAE
REETRD - A BB EEN S IMNEAZ BRI AT IR
WEMEASSKRIER - ZESTA SR
SNE BN EZBE N IEE - A RARF
BATGER s - MEREEIE K [\ B 1R 54t AR RE
BFNFERMENMKE - BEREZESCETH
BIERE - XTAREFTEERERTAINR
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Joseph Chan Kai Nin (Chairman) 11
Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 11

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 11

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, Mr
Ng Chi Keung and three INEDs, Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin, Mr Tony
Tsoi Tong Hoo and Mr Peter Wan Kam To. The Audit Committee is
chaired by Mr Peter Wan Kam To and meets at least twice a year.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
financial statements and reports and considering any significant or
unusual items raised by the qualified accountant, internal auditor or
external auditors before submission to the Board for approval. It is
also responsible for reviewing the scope and nature of the external
audit and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures. The Audit Committee has
revised its written terms of reference to be in line with the Revised
Code and are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange and are available to shareholders upon request.
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Audit Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2012, four Audit Committee
meetings were held to review the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company; to review the remuneration of external
auditors; to discuss with the external auditors their independence
and the nature and scope of the audit; to review the internal
audit programme, findings and management’s responses; and to
evaluate the system of internal controls and risk management of
the Group.

The attendance record of each member is as follows:

HERE ERRE
No. of meetings attended/held

BYFBITES
FIRE(EE)
REESF

BERZ

FHTES
KT

R BET BN &

(E—T-—F=A=+t—HILFER K2
BN RUZ AR R B S IR RIS P
A XN TR BRI

Independent Non-executive Directors

Peter Wan Kam To (Chairman) 4/4
Joseph Chan Kai Nin 2/4
Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 2/4

Non-executive Director
Ng Chi Keung 3/4

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the fees paid/payable to the
auditor in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the
auditor of the Company were as follows:

PR EE -]

Nature of services Amount

BT T

HK$'000

—T——F /TR HEEENE Review fee for 2011/12 interim results 475

SR IR R EEEERE Audit fee for 2011/12 final results 2,720
BIERETGE RS IEEZ R Non-audit services which covered provision

of tax compliance services 519

wER Total 3,714
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Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The Group’s internal
control system includes a well defined management structure with
limits of authority which is designed for the achievement of business
objectives, safeguard assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensure maintenance of proper books and records for the provision
of reliable financial information for internal use or publication, and
to ensure compliance with relevant legislations and regulations. The
Board conducts regular reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system.

Investor Relations and Communications

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of promoting
investor relations and communications. Designated Executive
Directors and senior management maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters
affecting the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’
meetings to communicate any concerns they might have with the
Board or management directly. Procedures on how shareholders
can convene a special general meeting, put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings and propose a person for election as
a director are available at Company website for shareholders’
information.

As a channel to further promote effective communication, the
Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Fairwood Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fairwood
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 43 to 133, which comprise the
consolidated and Company statements of financial position as at 31
March 2012, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 March 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 June 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
HE-2 - —F=A=+—-ALFRGBEIT)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

= =%
2012 2011
ks T Tt
Note $'000 $'000
—E Turnover 3(a) 1,829,456 1,665,881
SHEMRAR Cost of sales (1,584,656) (1,424,680)
EF Gross profit 244,800 241,201
HilA Other revenue 4 2,783 1,335
HAit 1S3 Other net income 4 17,739 14,207
HEBA Selling expenses (27,103) (30,112)
1THE A Administrative expenses (85,825) (78,569)
EFEEREREE Net impairment losses on fixed assets 11(d) (2,719) (6,832)
AL ERRG Valuation gains on investment properties 11(b) 1,835 6,019
R Profit from operations 151,510 147,249
R A Finance costs 5(a) (1,756) (2,100)
B % AT R Profit before taxation 5 149,754 145,149
Frig i Income tax 6(a) (19,187) (21,307)
AN B ERBR Profit for the year attributable to
B EERR equity shareholders of the Company 130,567 123,842
sRER Earnings per share 10
R Basic 104.45{licents 98.55fllicents
e Diluted 103.20fllicents 97.401licents

F512F13BAMM EE AT B IRER A — 2B
7 o BNAXRERBERNREHFEHD

BT EE24(c) »

the Company are set out in note 24(c).

The notes on pages 51 to 133 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
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e

BEZT—F=A=T—HUABBIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—CF T
2012 2011
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
AATERBR Profit for the year attributable to equity
PEAE A B F shareholders of the Company 130,567 123,842
AEEHM2EKE Other comprehensive income for the year
(BRBiR): (after tax):
HBEREARKEFE Exchange differences on translation of financial
(MR EL ] KA mH) statements of the People’s Republic of
B 5RO PE 5 A= RE China (the “PRC") subsidiaries 1,956 1,901
RER AR BB B A R Release of exchange reserve upon
Iy Bl BB 5 dissolution of PRC subsidiaries - 2,615
1,956 4,516
AATERBR Total comprehensive income for the year
EhEFEZERZEE attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 132,523 128,358
FOIEFIBENMEB AR B MERE —  The notes on pages 51 to 133 form part of these financial
a7 e statements.

RREEEBRAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R-E——F=A=+—H(ABEFR)

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E—CfF —T——%F
2012 2011
P s Fr Fir
Note $'000 $'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets 11(a)
—REME — Investment properties 44,202 42,367
—EAb¥Z - HIEFIER — Other property, plant and equipment 350,317 349,997
— A ETHEREEF — Interests in leasehold land held for
B LR SR own use under operating leases 7,463 7,675
401,982 400,039
Bl Goodwill 12 1,001 1,001
BEEeEe Rental deposits paid 44,721 42,245
Hib B E Other financial asset 14 2,329 2,334
EEFIB A E Deferred tax assets 22(b) 780 663
450,813 446,282
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 15(a) 33,483 33,087
JE U B SRR L PR U R Trade and other receivables 16 57,153 47,785
AT B AN ERF 18 Current tax recoverable 22(a) 8 47
IRITIFRANIR & Bank deposits and cash 17 265,306 253,710
355,950 334,629
REBAE Current liabilities
JE S BR SRR EL A 30 Trade and other payables 18 226,104 219,560
RITER Bank loans 19 5,024 10,908
FERT AR T8 Current tax payable 22(a) 6,766 14,325
i) Provisions 23 6,514 5,790
244,408 250,583
REBEEFE Net current assets 111,542 84,046
EEABERARBERE Total assets less current liabilities 562,355 530,328
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RZF-ZF=A=+—HBUABBIIR)
At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—fF —T——%F
2012 2011
B 7 Fx T
Note $'000 $'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities

RITER Bank loans 19 25,994 31,018
EERIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 22(b) 6,621 8,507
Bl eEe Rental deposits received 260 479
Al Provisions 23 25,768 22,597
58,643 62,601
EERE NET ASSETS 503,712 467,727

BEXRMFEE Capital and reserves 24
&N Share capital 124,500 125,414
s Reserves 379,212 342,313
ERAE TOTAL EQUITY 503,712 467,727

BEEER_T-—_FARAZTEBA®ZEILFT  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

RJEE - June 2012.
Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung Chan Chee Shing
HITEE TTIECABE,
Executive Chairman Chief Executive Officer
FE51E BHMEEB AT BHRRN —  The notes on pages 51 to 133 form part of these financial
BB o statements.

RIREEBER DT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Statement of Financial Position

RZE——F=A=+—B(ABEIIR)

At 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B--F —E—F
2012 2011
BfEE Fx T
Note $'000 $'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
NNk -5 Interests in subsidiaries 13 363,593 283,231
EERRIR A E Deferred tax assets 22(b) 780 -
364,373 283,231
REEE Current assets
JE UK B ZRAN L A UG FR Trade and other receivables 16 77,421 89,426
RITFRMBE L Bank deposits and cash 17 259 222
77,680 89,648
RBAE Current liabilities
JE S BR FORN L M A 3R Trade and other payables 18 29,494 29,611
RENEEFE Net current assets 48,186 60,037
BEEFE NET ASSETS 412,559 343,268
EAXRMFEE Capital and reserves 24
f& 7R Share capital 124,500 125,414
f# Reserves 288,059 217,854
e TOTAL EQUITY 412,559 343,268

EEER_T-—_FRAZTEBZELFT  Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

AR -

#ERE

June 2012.

Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung

HITERE

Executive Chairman

N

7

512 F1BAMM EE AT IHRER A — 2B

Chan Chee Shing

Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 51 to 133 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-2—

“E=R=1T—HIEFE(ABER)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

FAARERRELTS
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
Tl
BEY
RE  BOEE EARE EXRE  EHEE  REER an
Land and
buildings
Share Share Capital  Exchange revaluation  Retained
cpital  premium  reserve  reseve reserve profits Total
iz I S Fr r I S S
Note $'000 $'000 §! 000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R-2-2EMA-RAHEH Balance at 1 Aprl 2010 5687 A0 449 B4 M1 250 41250
B2-2—-F-A=t-AL Changes in equity for the
FENEREZE year ended 31 March 2011
RER SRR Profit for the year - - - - - B/ 13882
Hth2Eks Other comprehensive income - - - 4516 - - 4516
TEEEAYESEE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 4516 - I3/ 12838
RERBRE R NRG Shares issued under share option scheme ~ 24(c)) 505 2671 - - - - 3,176
B1BA Issue expenses - (44) - - - - (44)
TEEERERRS Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 24(c)i) - - - - - (35203)  (35203)
FEERERARS Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 24(c)i) - - - - - (35,196) (35,19)
INEREBRARN BERRRS  Equity-settled share-based transactions - 610 890 - - - 1,500
EEASRN Repurchase of own shares
-EfEE — par value paid 24(d)i) (778) - - - - - (778)
-BRRENZHRA — premium and transaction costs paid 24(d)i) - (3687) - - - (2,989) (6,676)
R-Z--£=B=+-AK Balance at 31 March 2011
“E--EME-HNEE and 1 April 2011 125,414 - 5329 1,019 21 3[4 4671727
BZ-2-—F-A=t-AL Changes in equity for the
FENERSD year ended 31 March 2012
TR Profit for the year = = = = - 130567 130567
o 2Ees Other comprehensive income - - - 1,956 - - 1,956
FERZEYEER Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,956 - 13057 132523
REEREBRNRG Shares issued under share option scheme A(d)i) 1,085 6,002 = = = = 7,087
HTEA Issue expenses - (69) - - - - (69)
TERERENRE Dividends approved in respect of
the previous year 24(c)(i) - - - - - (55,326) (55,326)
FEERERARE Dividends declared in respect of
the current year 24(c)i) - - - - - (27,294) (27,294)
INEREERARN BERRRS  Equity-settled share-based transactions - 1,130 85 - - - 1,215
BRI Repurchase of own shares
-BRNEE - par value paid 24l (1,999) - - - - - (199
-BREENRARA — premium and transaction costs paid 24(d)i) - (7,063) - - - (13089 (20,152
RZZB-ZFZB=+-AM&H  Balanceat31 March 2012 124,500 - 5,414 2975 41 370582 503,712
FOIEFIBEMWFB AT B ®MEKA—3  The notes on pages 51 to 133 form part of these financial
7 e statements.

RREEEBRAF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
BHE T —F=A=t—"HILFEUABEIIR)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—g——f —E
2012 2011
k=3 Fx Fr Fit Fr
Note $000 $000 $'000 $'000
REED Operating activities
BR A% A& A Profit before taxation 149,754 145,149
AEIER Adjustments for:
BTEENE Depreciation of fixed assets 65,462 61,799
s B EREE AN Amortisation of interests in
TR E R i leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases 212 211
ElFEEREEE TSR Net impairment losses on fixed assets 2,719 6,832
AR BEF ABRED Change in fair value of other
Hth&mBENAR financial liabilities at fair value
BEHZ through profit or loss 175 624
FMEER Interest expense 1,581 1,476
FLEBA Interest income (2,783) (1,335)
ErHRRARG S £EE Provision for long service
payments made 4,200 608
HEREFENIERD Gain on disposal of non-current
BEMH assets held for sale = (15,633)
BEETAENEERTE Net loss on disposal of fixed assets 1,256 3,850
FRENM B A RIRESIEF R Net loss on dissolution of subsidiaries - 2,145
JEYELERR Valuation gains on investment
properties (1,835) (6,019)
AR EE R LARG & Equity-settled share-based payment
A E A expenses 1,215 1,500
EEESEBALEHR Operating profit before changes
in working capital 221,956 201,207
EEESNEE : Changes in working capital:
FEEM Increase in inventories (396) (10,919)
ERFESIESEM Increase in rental deposits paid (3,045) (7,604)
R AT B 0 R L i S K3 Increase in trade and other receivables (4,905) (2,298)
JEAS BR SN E A FE S 3R Increase/(decrease) in trade and
g CRid) other payables 10,905 (3,604)
Bl eEem Decrease in rental deposits received (279) (262)
EERRBREEEHE Provision for long service
payments utilised (800) (768)
BB REIER AN R Provision for reinstatement
costs utilised (674) (714)
REEBELENES Cash generated from operations 222,762 175,038
BHFE Interest received 2,529 1,216
BRFE Interest paid (1,581) (1,476)
[=ENEZ2E Tax paid
—BNBEBNEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (27,432) (10,645)
—REFEBNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 39 144
—BRHERIE — PRC tax paid (1,277) -
RETHAENRS Net cash generated from operating
FHELE activities carried forward 195,040 164,277
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_ZT——F=A=1

HIEFE (LABEESITR)

For the year ended 31 March 2012 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-—F —E——F
2012 2011
iE=3 Fr Fr Tt Fit
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ARIRETEBFBH Net cash generated from operating
RE&FHE activities brought forward 195,040 164,277
REEE Investing activities
EARTEEEMNK Payment for purchase of fixed assets (73,715) (66,467)
HEREHENERD Net proceeds from disposal of
BEFTSHIEFE non-current assets held for sale - 22,880
& B & ESHIEFE Net proceeds from disposal
of fixed assets 9 302
REFEFIANRSFEE Net cash used in investing activities (73,706) (43,285)
RMEEE Financing activities
BB E R 811 TAR D Proceeds from shares issued under
Fr5 308 share option scheme 24(d)(i) 7,087 3,176
BOIRMATEENER Expenses incurred in connection
with the issue of shares (69) (44)
EE- 1SRN Payment for repurchase of shares (25,790) (7,454)
BRRE Dividends paid (82,620) (70,399)
BEIIRITER Repayment of bank loans (11,141) (3,590)
R EERRITER Uplift of pledged bank deposits 2,716 -
MEFTBMANREFE Net cash used in financing activities (109,817) (78,311)
REeMNBSESEYELINFE Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 11,517 42,681
ROUBE—BHREM Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April
REe%EY 250,994 207,492
HEEESENTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2,795 821
REZA=+—HHEEM Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
REeLEY 17 265,306 250,994

FSIEFIBEMNTB AT BRI —

fj\ o
RREEEBRAF

statements.

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The notes on pages 51 to 133 form part of these financial
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(BRIEZFER - BRIBUEESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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BRMEEERNEERBELAASAENS
HEMEARMIELR  HERBRAT
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BEMREEERPTEL B ER -
BERAERABEBRINEFT 25 -

1
(a)

Significant Accounting Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2012 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise stated
in the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(FRIESBTH - BRBILIEE IR
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
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RIREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

1

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to the Group's
financial statements:

— HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

— Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

—  HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the Group has re-assessed the
identification of related parties and concluded that the
revised definition does not have any material impact on the
Group’s related party disclosures in the current and previous
periods. HKAS 24 (revised 2009) also introduces modified
disclosure requirements for government-related entities.
This does not impact the Group because the Group is not a
government-related entity.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)
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— Improvements to HKFRS (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures.
The disclosures about the Group’s financial instruments in
note 25 have been conformed to the amended disclosure
requirements. These amendments do not have any material
impact on the classification, recognition and measurements
of the amounts recognised in the financial statements in
the current and previous periods.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists
when the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions,
whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to
reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in the profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(k)).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

1
(e)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred and the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)).

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair
value. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(i)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in the profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 1(s)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied for other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as
described in note 1(i).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(k)):

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold
land classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(i));
and

— other items of plant and equipment, except cutlery and
utensils (see below).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
situated thereon

30 - 50 years

— Leasehold improvements the remaining term of

the tenancy leases
— Air-conditioning plant the remaining term of
the tenancy leases

— Furniture and equipment 10% — 20% per annum

— Motor vehicles 15% per annum

— Computer system 25% per annum

— Others 10% per annum

No depreciation is provided on initial purchases of cutlery and
utensils which are capitalised. Costs of subsequent replacements
are charged to profit or loss in the year when the expenditure
is incurred.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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1
(i)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property
is classified as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis and, if classified as investment property,
is accounted for as if held under a finance lease (see
note 1(g)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time that the lease was
first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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(i)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leased assets (continued)

(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to
be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term.

Trade and other receivables and other financial asset

The Group’s other financial asset represents a structured bank
note which is a non-derivative financial asset with fixed or
determinable payments that is not quoted in an active market
and is classified as loans and receivables. Purchases and sales of
structured note are recognised on the trade date. The Group’s
other financial asset is derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset has
expired or has been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.

Trade and other receivables and other financial asset are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method less allowance for doubtful
debts (see note 1(k)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
doubtful debts.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets
() Impairment of trade and other receivables and other

financial asset carried at amortised cost

Trade and other receivables and other financial asset that
are stated at amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, impairment loss of trade and
other receivables and other financial asset carried at
amortised cost is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the
effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.
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financial asset carried at amortised cost (continued)
Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as being
held under an operating lease;

— investments in subsidiaries; and

goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset'’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and
fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 1(r)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at the grant date using the trinomial lattice model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss in the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On the vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share
options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

() Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred
tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

() Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or



1 ERFHBR(E) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
() FRSFi(&) (g) Income tax (continued)
— RERBEEELEAE  sLEEHNS — inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate

BB EE — AR R A N E AR —
TR TS AR -

— R—ERER =X

— TRANERES - ELEBTE
ERREEBRNA KBERELERIA
BEFBEEIABRBLENIRE
EFAREEHER - RFER
EREREHMHBEENBEE
HHRIERE  ARSERZEE

MBHEZAE -

(N BIELRIBER  EEMBRE
() EfELBRIEHER

BB RRENFTEIN LT ABE
RA) A E SR - AREZER
MEm A FHBEADBERE—REES
ANRIBETS T AR T EEE R 2]
B ELRER -

INRASE B AR RWEL BB IER -
EROAABEGRIFLAEERS
Al et - BRAIARBER)HEE
< RRSRAN LA FE A 3R 1A R AR
FEW S © BLAE D FEOR T O Ik U
HEMS  HESRBAKEEARN
ZIEEENBERIER - MRREFEW
SEWCHE - BIME RS ERET
Wa WA TERR I IR 2R P RERR ©

MIEHER S BN SN EREESH
ERPANMERTEHESCIFLMH
FERAVUA - BE5N - MR R E )R
M A AR RER BE RIERAASKE
RIEEBAR - UR(NRASEEE LA
RSN ENRRAE R
AR ERERARN SRR
VI FER A S BB K R B R AT
S8 ESREME10)ERE
o

to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specific payments to reimburse
the beneficiary to the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specific debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group or the Company issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be
reliably estimated) is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(r)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that claim on the Group
is expected to exceed the amount currently carried in trade
and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)
(i) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(s) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i

(ii)

Revenue arising from the sale of food and beverages is
recognised in profit or loss at the point of sale to customers.
Revenue is after deduction of any sale discounts.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent
rentals are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are earned.

(iii) Interestincome is recognised as it accrues using the effective

interest method.

(iv) Other income is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual

basis.
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(t)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and subsidiaries
which operate in Hong Kong is Hong Kong dollars while that
for subsidiaries which operate in the PRC is Renminbi. The
presentation currency of the Group is Hong Kong dollars.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of operations outside Hong Kong, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 EEgHBEE) 1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(u) BEEXAKE) (u) Borrowing costs (continued)
EE@Q%T%%T%EZZK*%B%H’M%EEEZK The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
EEEEERS  BERAEEMEE qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
ERABRTERELIEERMYANEHFHT is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
TEEITHIRRBERNME - EEEERE activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
F&)\TWﬁﬁﬁiiﬁ%ﬁﬁZwAE’ﬂ N use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs

DEBEITEPR LKA - BERARE is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
T ENFIEERE - necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.

(v) Rt (v) Related parties
(1) WBIA AL BIRZALZALTH (1) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

MR AL E R - related to the Group if that person:

(i) PEHIREREHIARER (i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) EREBBEERFES ; o} (i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) RAKEHAKEEFQRIABESRE (i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
EIEAR o Group or the Group's parent.

) ZZDH{:.\T@JETT{I % BEIEEERRE (2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

REB R T - conditions applies:

() ZEREXEBMER —£H () the entity and the Group are members of the same
(BEE QA MEBARMER group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
B8 A R L A s ) o fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) " REBEEES—EEMBENF (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
FeErE(HAS—ERBMESE entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
EETKERARINEE A ARINE a group of which the other entity is a member).
EHE) o

(i) MRBEEERA—F=AMaED (iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
% o

vy " REBRF-FEENAED (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
¥ ME—EBEBEF=FEEN other entity is an associate of the third entity.

V) ZEBRRAEEFIERAEEH (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
i M EBNEERAM benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
REEEB RN E S - related to the Group.

(vi) ZEBXE L E)EARE (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
AT EES) - identified in (1).

6 RIREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(V)

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(2) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:(continued)
(vii)a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Accounting Judgements and Estimates

Notes 12, 21 and 25 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to goodwill impairment, fair value
of share options granted and financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of fixed assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether there is
any indication that a fixed asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the fixed asset
is estimated. Changes in facts and circumstances may result
in revisions to the conclusion of whether an indication of
impairment exists and revised estimates of recoverable amounts,
which would affect profit or loss in future years.
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2
(b)

Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)
Depreciation

Fixed assets other than cutlery and utensils are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful
lives are based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are material changes from previous estimates.

Valuation of investment properties

As described in note 11(b), the investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by an
independent firm of professional surveyors after taking into
consideration the net rental income allowing for reversionary
income potential.

In determining the fair value, the surveyors have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates including
current market rents for similar properties in the same location
and condition and expected future market rents. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has exercised their
judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market condition.

Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC taxes

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC
taxes. Judgement is required in determining the provision
for such taxes. There are transactions during the ordinary
course of business, for which calculation of the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the year in which
such determination is made.

Recognition of deferred tax assets depends on the management’s
expectation of future taxable profits that will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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2 Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

(e) Provision for long service payments
As explained in note 23(a), the Group makes provision for long
service payments in accordance with the requirement of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The Group has based
the estimation on its recent employees’ statistics and adopted
certain assumptions in assessing the provision for long service
payments. It is possible that these assumptions adopted by
the Group in assessing the provision for long service payments
may not be indicative of the future situation. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.

(f) Provision for reinstatement costs
As explained in note 23(b), the Group makes provision for
reinstatement costs based on the best estimate of the expected
costs to be incurred upon expiry of the respective rental
agreements, which are subject to uncertainty and might differ
from the actual costs incurred. Any increase or decrease in the
provision would affect profit or loss in future years.

3 Turnover and Segment Reporting

(@) Turnover
The principal activities of the Group are operation of fast food
restaurants and property investments.

Turnover represents the sales value of food and beverages sold
to customers and rental income. An analysis of turnover is as
follows:

—ZT——F —T—F

2012 2011

ST Fit

$000 $'000

R RERMmIEE Sale of food and beverages 1,825,630 1,660,066
LEY ik Property rental 3,826 5,815
1,829,456 1,665,881

EMAREIEEHOLE — SRERE
T

Further details regarding the Group's principal activities are
disclosed below:
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3 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by two geographical divisions,
namely Hong Kong restaurant and the PRC restaurant, which
are organised by both products and geographical locations.
In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment, the Group has identified the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments have been
aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Hong Kong restaurant: this segment operates fast food
restaurants in Hong Kong.

The PRC restaurant: this segment operates fast food

restaurants in the PRC.

Other segments generate profits mainly from leasing of
investment properties and include corporate expenses.

() Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortisation
of assets attributable to those segments.

Performance is measured based on segment profit before
taxation. Items not specifically attributable to individual
segments, such as corporate expenses (mainly costs of
supporting functions that are provided by head office), are
not allocated to the reporting segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
revenue) and cost of sales (including food cost, labour
cost, rent and rates and depreciation). The inter-segment
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms
and were priced with reference to prevailing market prices
and in the ordinary course of business.



3 BEXURIWMBWE(E) 3 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)
(b) 7 EBE (&) (b) Segment reporting (continued)

() FEbFEEE) (i) Segment results (continued)
AEESSETHERABY ERE Segment assets information is not reported or used by the
SEABEEDHLEENER - Group’s most senior executive management.

E_T_FR_T——F=A= Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as
T-BLEFERETASERSETT provided to the Group’s most senior executive management
HERABRED BB RIS H0 for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
KENAEEREDHLERDT o segment performance for the years ended 31 March 2012

and 2011 is set out below.

EREE HERE Etb o 4%
Hong Kong restaurant The PRC restaurant Other segments Total
“E-TF ZB——% ZE--F Z§E——f “E--f ZF--F “I--F %%
2012 201 2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011

Tn T Tr R Tn T Tr S
§000 §'000 §000 $'000 §'000 §'000 $'000 $'000

RESNFEPHYA Revenue from external customers 1631895 1497402 193735 162,664 3,826 5815 182945 1,665,881
RELHAHHMA Inter-segment revenue - - = - 5379 5,098 5,379 5,008
BEFBUA Reportable segment revenue 1631895 14974020 193735 162,664 9,205 10913 1834835 1,670,979
BEADER Reportable segment profit 115618 109323 16,439 18815 7,349 743% 139406 135574
MEHA Interest income 231 117 4 164 - - 2783 1,335
BIERNASER Interest expense on bank loans 1,383 1,09 198 380 = - 1,581 1476
HEMNZH Depreciation and amortisation 57,710 55,239 6,726 5,639 1,238 1132 65,674 62,010
EEAERAERE Impairment losses on fixed assets 2214 2,648 1463 4,184 - - 3677 6,832
E0ETEEREER Reversal of impairment losses

on fixed assets - - (958) - - - (958) -
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3 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit

3 EXURSBEE(E)
7R E (A

—EB—C—F %
2012 2011
5 Fr
$'000 $'000
=g Profit
BB AT RS 9 5E T Reportable segment profit before taxation 139,406 135,574
R EIHED KA HEE Compensation received for surrender
of a tenancy lease 13,460 -
HERBHFED Gain on disposal of non-current assets
FEMEN & B R W held for sale — 15,633
RELIEEEENEENHE Compensation paid to a landlord upon
early termination of a tenancy lease - (147)
AR BEF ABRN Change in fair value of other
Hih R BEN financial liabilities at fair value
RABEEZS) through profit or loss (175) (624)
BAYZELERRG Valuation gains on investment properties 1,835 6,019
BT & ERERTEFE Net impairment losses on fixed assets (2,719) (6,832)
BB B A R R ESIEF 5 Net loss on dissolution of subsidiaries = (2,145)
ROBHAFEA Unallocated corporate expenses (2,053) (2,329)
BRI ATAR S i Kl Consolidated profit before taxation 149,754 145,149

(iii) s/ E#Y

(iii) Geographic information
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The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed assets and
goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the specified non-current assets
is based on the physical location of the asset in the case
of fixed assets, and the location of the operation to which
they are allocated in the case of goodwill.
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3 Turnover and Segment Reporting (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Geographic information (continued)

REMBEEHBA
Revenue from
external customers

EEFRDEE
Specified
non-current assets

—E--f ZZ—% T ZT——%§
2012 2011 2012 2011
T T T F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
&8 (i) Hong Kong (place of domicile) 1,632,308 1,499,565 311,208 317,452
] The PRC 197,148 166,316 91,775 83,588
1,829,456 1,665,881 402,983 401,040
4 Rk AFFREBREH 4 Other Revenue and Net Income
—E-—fF —T——%
2012 2011
Fr FiT
$'000 $'000
Hihlt A Other revenue
R YA Interest income 2,783 1,335
Hi s F88 Other net income
R EFAE D YWERR R E (FE) Compensation received for surrender
of a tenancy lease (note) 13,460 -
BEETEEENEETE Net loss on disposal of fixed assets (1,256) (3,850)
BERRBEES Electric and gas range incentives 2,906 2,294
B RIS i A Profit on sale of redemption gifts 797 1,175
HERERHEN Gain on disposal of non-current assets
IEMENE E B U held for sale — 15,633
BRI B A R ESIEF 5 Net loss on dissolution of subsidiaries = (2,145)
RERIHEERNEEHMFHE Compensation paid to a landlord
upon early termination of a tenancy lease - (147)
Hit Others 1,832 1,247
17,739 14,207

W B2 ZT——F=ZA=+—HIF
B ASBERATRERZEEL—
HMHEENME BERIN—Z£/#ESR

13,460,0007T °

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group has
surrendered the tenancy lease for a premises under an urban
renewal plan and received a compensation of $13,460,000.
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5 BRIRATEF
BRBADEFNE NG, GHA):

5 Profit Before Taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

T—_F —T—F
2012 2011
T T
$'000 $'000
(a) REERLA (a) Finance costs
AR EE ABREAM Change in fair value of other financial
SRBENAREEE liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 175 624
IRITERF B Interest on bank loans 1,581 1,476
1,756 2,100
(b) BTRAE (b) Staff costs
AEHRFORRETEINER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 21,503 18,736
UARE R A E Y LARR 19 Equity-settled share-based
RERNER payment expenses 1,215 1,500
e TEMEAER Salaries, wages and other benefits 483,368 423,186
506,086 443,422
() HfbER (c) Otheritems
FERA(FIEE) Cost of inventories (note) 517,959 469,829
EEEEE Depreciation of fixed assets 65,462 61,799
NS HERHEE AR Amortisation of interests
i AE E s 8 in leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases 212 211
ZEE NS Auditor's remuneration 3,195 3,030
MENKEHEER Operating lease charges on properties
—REBERE — Minimum lease payments 251,699 226,585
—EHEE - Contingent rentals 18,001 15,752
EWE S Rental receivable
—REME  REE — Investment properties, less direct
¥ 11265,0007T outgoings of $265,000
(=Z——% : 250,0007T) (2011: $250,000) (3,149) (3,402)
—HipfBaeiE — Other operating sub-leases (412) (2,163)
HgEHMINER Cost of subsequent replacement
MEmMMER of cutlery and utensils 9,189 8,643

Mt EREERMKA

RIREEBER DT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note:  This represents food cost.



6 REWRRMATHMRFR
AN

6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(@) FREWRKITRTRIES (a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
—E-=F —T—F
2012 2011
T Fit
$'000 $'000
AHHE—BENEGH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REE LR Provision for the year 21,209 21,737
AFFEEECATR), TR (Oven)/under-provision in respect of prior years (1,162) 80
20,047 21,817
AEHE—FE Current tax — PRC
REFAEE Provision for the year 1,283 -
NEFEEERE Over-provision in respect of prior years (165) (252)
1,118 (252)
IEFEBIE (M EE22(b)) Deferred tax (note 22(b))
Bl = E A E A Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,978) (258)
19,187 21,307

HE-T——F=A=1+—HILEEHN
EBNNEHREBRRAFEN LT ERT
T MIA165% (ZF——4F : 16.5%)
W EGE - PERIEZEAFEHREH
EMEHR - WAPREABRKEER

BRI RS

jurisdictions in the PRC.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended
31 March 2012 is calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC taxation represents
PRC corporate income tax for the year and is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax
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6 REWMSRMTHRER(E)

(b) MIEZHMEHENZBERARERAERN

6 Income Tax in the Consolidated Income Statement

(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at

HE - applicable tax rates:
—B-CfF —E——%F
2012 2011
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
BB A& A Profit before taxation 149,754 145,149
#%8B16.5% (ZZT——%F :16.5%) Notional Hong Kong Profits Tax
R EHREEENSH calculated at 16.5% (2011:16.5%) 24,709 23,950
AR BT IER & Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 481 789
DA ANTRIBRZ Tax effect of non-taxable income (4,347) (3,447)
RNFEARERH AN I8 Tax effect of current year's
HRIER & tax losses not recognised = 217
RNEE B BRI BERERR Tax effect of previously unrecognised
AEIIRIB S ENIERE tax losses recognised this year (780) -
RERNE MG ER Tax effect of other temporary
W IER R differences not recognised 34 42
REEDEATBERERD Tax effect of previously unrecognised
HihE R ERNRIELE other temporary differences utilised this year = (72)
A FEEERTE Over-provision in respect of prior years (1,327) (172)
TEEM ADERE R S @ —K Effect of different tax rate of a
F B 2 R BRI R 2 A Y subsidiary operating in other jurisdiction 417 -
ERBEI L Actual tax expense 19,187 21,307
RIEEBBRLDF

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



7 EE&

7 Directors’ Remuneration

RBEBCRRIEDDE 1611 RNES

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of

[Fl U the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e 28 MR A RikGtE —B-=F
EZHe  NEYIE WETEAL  ERHNXZG e aE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary ~ Share-based scheme 2012
fee in kind bonus payments contributions Total
T Tr Tr Tr Tr T
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
(MaE)
(note)
HITES Executive Directors
HERBTE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 4,560 3,616 - 12 8,308
BRAERK ST & Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,776 1,447 169 12 3,524
£ p G | Ms Mak Yee Mei 120 1,248 723 89 12 2,192
FHITES Non-executive Director
RERTAE Mr Ng Chi Keung 150 - - - - 150
BYFHITES Independent
Non-executive Directors
FREESF e A Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
Il L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
BERZESE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 140 - - - - 140
FHERIES L Mr Peter Wan Kam To 200 - - - - 200
1,140 7,584 5,786 258 36 14,804
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7 EEM&E

)

7 Directors’ Remuneration (continued)

e 28 PR B RifsE —Z——F
EEHe  MENNE i AEHZ H3 Foe]
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors”  and benefits  Discretionary  Share-based scheme 2011
fee in kind bonus payments  contributions Total
Fr Fr Fr T Tr Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
(M3E)
(note)
HITES Executive Directors
BFAHEE Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung 120 4,526 3323 - 12 7,981
PR 7 A& Mr Chan Chee Shing 120 1,492 1,329 269 12 3,222
E-S x U El Ms Mak Yee Mei 120 1,249 399 140 12 1,920
FHITES Non-executive Director
REmik Mr Ng Chi Keung 150 - - - - 150
BYEHITES Independent
Non-executive Directors
PREESF e A Mr Joseph Chan Kai Nin 160 - - - - 160
ZIBREE L Dr Peter Lau Kwok Kuen 130 - - - - 130
BRREE Mr Tony Tsoi Tong Hoo 140 - - - - 140
FEHEE Mr Peter Wan Kam To 200 - - - - 200
1,140 7,267 5,051 409 36 13,903
BsE - Note:

B RERN N REBRBEARRNEK
REAERTESERENMGEE - BLE
PR ) (BB R IR BRI 5 1 (p)((i) FT 8k 51 AN = B A
BORERNINR NG RRTE A
REZAERR - B2 HIUSRSNEA R
W T s T AR F 2 R 8RE
I EHHIFEEE -

BERELEYMNENFE  BEARTER
BOTIBERNBE  SREFSHRETE
gt 8l | —BR AN RE21A -

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the Directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to the Group’s
accounting policy for share-based payment transactions as set out in
note 1(p)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments
to reverse amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity
instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

Details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors and note 21.
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EEHeAL 8

ERfuMlesKenALHh = (ZF—
—F: ZM)REF - ARNMEFIER
RHIEE7 - HERMA(ZT——F : ML)

Individuals with Highest Emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three
(2011: three) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the

ATHBEEFENT other two individuals (2011: two individuals) is as follows:
—E—CfF —T—%F
2012 2011
T Fir
$'000 $'000
e REMME Salaries and other emoluments 3,109 2,643
VARR (7 AL B A 2 A Share-based payments 662 135
RIRET B R Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
3,795 2,802

M —T——F MM eERSAL
S EA TRENA -

The emoluments of the two individuals (2011: two individuals)
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

—E——F —T——%F

2012 2011

AE N ¢

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

Z£JT%1,000,0007T $0 - $1,000,000 - 1
1,000,0017c£1,500,0007T $1,000,001 - $1,500,000 - -
1,500,0017c%2,000,0007T $1,500,001 - $2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001 t%2,500,0007T $2,000,001 — $2,500,000 1 -
2 2

RER REBTEAENESERAS
KT MALTXNME(ZF——4F:
) - ARSI PN Bk A IE A
RERER A RE IR (E

During the year, no emoluments (2011: nil) were paid by the
Group to any of the Directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a

compensation for loss of office.
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9 FAFHBBHEERF
AARESRREEFREEHNEE 28

A D BB SRR B9 F108,918,0007T
(ZZT——4F : 58,421,0007T) °

ADE] A E R F e R 8 -

9 Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the

Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of $108,918,000 (2011:
$58,421,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount of the Company’s profit

for the year:

—E—C-F —T—F
2012 2011
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
AR R RIS RE A Amount of consolidated profit attributable
AR R EL to equity shareholders dealt with in the
FERMeRE Company’s financial statements 108,918 58,421
BRI AT B A A= Write back of impairment losses
HIR E R R on interests in subsidiaries 56,911 14,746
KRR TARF EEF (7E24(0)) Company’s profit for the year (note 24(b)) 165,829 73,167

BN RENERRERKRRAREFFE
ERIFE24(0)

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity shareholders of

the Company are set out in note 24(c).



10 HAAEF
(a) BREAREF

BREARFRIZBARN R L RBERS
fi% 58 FE 14 %% F1130,567,000T( =& ——
1 123,842,00070) ' MEAFENT
BT AR &Y hNE 15 2125,000,000%
(ZZ——4 :125,662,0000% ) 5+ & 10

10 Earnings Per Share

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company
of $130,567,000 (2011: $123,842,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 125,000,000 shares
(2011: 125,662,000 shares) in issue during the year, calculated

N as follows:
AR e ke TR Weighted average number of ordinary shares:
e —
2012 2011
RPEE igrE ]
Number of Number of
shares shares
TR TR
‘000 ‘000
REA—BREETEER Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 125,414 125,687
IEEREN T2 Effect of share options exercised 769 343
Elfedib g o) Effect of shares repurchased (1,183) (368)
REZA=+—HEBER Weighted average number of
Ik ordinary shares at 31 March 125,000 125,662
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10 SRR (&)
(b) BEHFRAN

R ERFSIRBAAR L BRER
fi% 58 FE 14 3% F1130,567,000T( =& ——
4 1 123,842,0007T) + A K gk @ AL AY
hn 4 F 15 #0126,513,0000( — T — —
£ :127,151,0000) 5T E 0T

B I E (HE) -

10 Earnings Per Share (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $130,567,000 (2011: $123,842,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 126,513,000
shares (2011: 127,151,000 shares), calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

—E-C-F —T——%

2012 2011

v ] R EE

Number of Number of

shares shares

F R TR

‘000 ‘000
RYEtESRERBFIE Weighted average number of ordinary shares

LmAR ke T8 used in calculating basic earnings per share 125,000 125,662

WAR RIRIEAR AR Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares

FERRRERT BN E B under the Company’s share option scheme

BITEBROTE for nil consideration 1,513 1,489
REst E BRESE R TE Weighted average number of ordinary shares

LiBAR ke T8 used in calculating diluted earnings per share 126,513 127,151

RIEEBBRLDF



11 BIESE

11 Fixed Assets

(a) K&EE (a) The Group
VR
HELH i fitEaRH
NEEh HRIR HfpEE Iy REnE  teldEs g
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
Leasehold OWN LSe Under
land and Leasehold Other Investment operating
buldings ~ improvements aels Sub-fotal properties leases Total
i T T T i i i
§1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §000 §1000
AAGE: Cost or valuation:
W_5-ZEMA-A At 1 Apr 2010 107,969 261477 388,033 757479 4,078 8,09 807,655
EiE Exchange adjustments 4 114 1487 2885 - - 288
g Additions 21 24294 am 06,486 - - 66,486
e Disposals - 311 (20212) (51,326) - - (51326)
ExiprlRIN0) Redassfication note 11(g) 5730 - - 5730 (5,730) - -
E Surplus on revalzation - - - - 6,019 - 6019
W5-—F=A=1-H At 31 March 2011 113,99 255,781 411479 781,254 42367 8098 831,719
ftx: Representing;
s Cost 113,9% 255,781 411419 781,254 - 809 789,32
fE-—5-% Valuation - 2011 - - - - 137 - 0367
113,99 255,781 41479 781,254 42367 80%8 831,719
gt Accumulated depreciation,
RERAE: amortisation and impairment
R-Z-Z50A-A At 1 Apr 2010 31814 179,686 197,051 408,551 - M 408,763
EigE Exchange adjustments 143 574 3 1249 - - 1249
ERREREY Charge for the year 2867 2620 3710 61799 - 1 62010
HERED Writen back on disposa - 30,481) (16,693) w717 - - (47.174)
HEEE Impaiment losses - 2160 4672 6,832 - - 6832
W-5—%Zf=1-H At 31 March 2011 348 178,161 2182712 831257 - n 431,680
FEsE: Net book value:
W-5-—%=f=1-H At 31 March 2011 19170 77620 193,207 349,997 4367 1675 400,039
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11 BEEE(E) 11 Fixed Assets (continued)
(a) NEE(E) (a) The Group (continued)
HieRE
HELH REnz BEERK
24 YRIR HhEE it RENE LRGSR 5
Interests in
leasehold
land held for
Leasehold OWN Use under
land and Leasehold Other Investment operating
buildings  improvements assets Sub-total properties leases Total
r i i r n r r
$1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000 §1000
BATEE: Costor valuation:
R-F-—EMA-A At 1 Aprl 2011 113,99 255,781 411,419 781,254 42367 8,09 831,719
EiE Bxchange adjustments 255 1,105 1,34 2704 - - 2704
1} Addtons - 26,39 R0 6842 - - 68422
il Disposals - (28.812) (14,593) (43,405} - - (43,405)
g Surplus on revaluation - - - - 1,835 - 1,835
W-E-E=f=1-8 At 31 March 2012 114249 254468 440,258 808,975 44202 8,098 861,275
fi&: Representing;
B Cost 114249 254468 440,258 808,975 - 8,098 817013
ffa-25-2F Valuation - 2012 - - - - 0 - 40
114249 254468 440,258 808,975 44202 8,098 861,275
ZitfE. Accumulated depreciation,
ReRaE: amortisation and impairment;
R-F——£mA-H At April 2011 3484 178,161 2821 131257 - 0 431,680
EfE Bxchange adjustments 142 635 53 1,360 - - 1,360
EERERES Charge for the year 208 2829 30188 65,462 = M 65,674
EREE Written back on disposa - (2879) (13,349) (42,140) - - (82,140)
HEEE Impairment losses - 172 1,950 3677 . . 3677
HEEEMED Reversal of impaiiment losses - (958) - (958) - - (958)
W-E-E=f=1-8 At 31 March 2012 37,948 179,065 241,645 458658 - 635 459,293
FE¥E: Net book value:
RB-ZEA=1-H At31 March 2012 76,301 75,403 198,413 350317 #0 7463 401,982

86 RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



(a)

11 Fixed Assets (continued)

REEE ( (@) The Group (continued)
REBEMEX AR HER The analysis of cost or valuation of the properties of the Group
DITAT - is as follows:
—2--fF =T
2012 2011
7 7
$'000 $'000
HE T MEEY - BRE Leasehold land and buildings, at cost
EEBHREREE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 80,845 80,845
EERBRINIPEEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 33,404 33,149
114,249 113,994
REWE - REE Investment properties, at valuation
EEBHTEREE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 12,932 11,877
ERARIFHEIEE Medium-term leasehold outside Hong Kong 31,270 30,490
44,202 42,367
UREHERFERRANLIHHEE Interests in leasehold land held for own
fEm 0 BEE use under operating leases, at cost
ERANTEHEE Medium-term leasehold in Hong Kong 8,098 8,098

REBABEREYEER _TE——F=
B=Z+—BEHES WA FHBILAMEST
GBS LERATELARMENT
HEEEITEM - BREGAELHBE A
EMIT—HREEETEEMERR
TET HEHETLABSHIEMES
ERre8  HAEEMENTELFFT
BEEEAEREBANGHELS - NFE
#) & (& B 841,835,000 0( — T ——4
6,019,0007T) BT Abréa ek ©

HBEEBREEM R SRHE -7
B BHEESRNABENTIXZAR
28I o

(b) All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at

31 March 2012 on an open market value basis calculated by
reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary income
potential. The valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among
their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the locations and category of properties
being valued. The revaluation surplus of $1,835,000 (2011:
$6,019,000) for the year has been credited to the consolidated
income statement.

Other assets include furniture, equipment, air-conditioning
plant, motor vehicles, computer systems and initial purchases
of cutlery and utensils.
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1"

(d)

BIE&EZ)

EARFERN AEEEEERTETH
EEERERE WHEETEEDE
ETEEMAKEEEE - BEGBE -
FRELETEENEESECD RE
3,677,00070( — & — — £ : 6,832,000
To) ° BEAN - REEERERFRNENH
O EENEFESREMNETE
EE AT U (B 058 - W HE[E1958,000 7T AR (E
EBE(ZE—F &) - Bt RFER
B E T & E 82,719,000t ( —F —
—4F 1 6,832,0007T) HBEE 1B F58 -

AT U B B EE B 5T R AR BT IR R10%
(ZE——F 0% FTEEHEFTEE
FEREBEAER -

1"

Fixed Assets (continued)

(d) During the year, the Group’s management identified several

branches which continued to under-perform and estimated
the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of those branches.
Based on these estimates, the carrying amount of the fixed
assets was written down by $3,677,000 (2011: $6,832,000)
during the year. In addition, the Group’s management re-
estimated the recoverable amounts of the fixed assets of a
branch which had been impaired in prior years and wrote back
impairment loss of $958,000 (2011: nil) during the year. As a
result, the net impairment losses on fixed assets of $2,719,000
(2011: $6,832,000) were recognised during the year.

The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the fixed
assets’ value in use, determined using a discount rate of 10%
(2011: 10%).

RZZTE—ZF=A=+—H ' BXEE (o) At31March 2012, the net book value of properties pledged as
oM B AR FERITEEERIFANY security for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of
H R FE /48,271,000t ( =& — — the Group amounted to $48,271,000 (2011: $48,259,000).
F : 48,259,0007T) °
AEFEDGCEHEHDIREYZE - 54 () The Group leases out investment properties under operating
MEVLRE—FE2=9F KIHELKLZLH leases. The leases initially run for one to three years. None of
EUTEEHEEE AEERETA the leases includes contingent rentals. The Group’s total future
HRMKEHETAERENREREE minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
AT leases are receivable as follows:
—E-CF —E—%F
2012 2011
5 Fi
$'000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 2,237 3,270
—FHBRFA After 1 year but within 5 years 215 1,744
2,452 5,014

() BEZZ——F=A=+—HIEFE "

N HHEETCTRREEREEEA
5,730,0007CHIYI% - EHRIREMFEEA
HELTHMEEY BALAEEE-Z
—ZFNA—BEREBZYEREET
REELERR -

RIREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(g) During the year ended 31 March 2011, a property with a

carrying value amounting to $5,730,000 held in the PRC
under a medium-term lease was transferred from investment
properties to leasehold land and buildings because the Group
has used the property for its own fast food operation since 1
September 2010.



12 e

12 Goodwill
—E-=fF —E——F
2012 2011
F FiT
$'000 $'000
A RMA—B&R=A=+—H Cost, at 1 April and 31 March 1,001 1,001

BERENESELBETARERNR
AEEIRE LR MER DD B E
TRBROBESELETIT

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU") identified according to the area of operation and
business segment as follows:

—E-CF —EB——%

2012 2011

Fr Fit

$'000 $'000

BBREB—F Restaurant operation — The PRC 1,001 1,001

ReERETNA KOS R RIEMER
EBEE AENERRBREEEDRE
MAFMBRENR S REMT - BB
hEHENRERER MG X
YEHEL - BREAAIBBAZREELE
TR EE BN RIMFIEER -

AAEEREENEERR

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimate rates
stated below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

—E-=F —T—F

2012 2011

EF=E Gross margin 13% 14%
HBRE Growth rate 5% 5%
R = Discount rate 10% 10%

EEBREBEANEAMSERETRE
HEME - FIERAMMMEFHERER SR
TTEREPTEIN — 20 MAARB
RERAERRABRASELETHER
SETATITRE -

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and their expectation for market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU.
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13 RIfBAFIHNER 13 Interests in Subsidiaries
¥ /N
The Company
—T——F —T—F
2012 2011
5 Fix
$'000 $'000

JEETRG » AR Unlisted shares, at cost 81,860 81,308

FEUSHI B A FIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 281,733 258,834

363,593 340,142

B OREEE Less: Impairment losses — (56,911)

363,593 283,231

(a) FEULHIB A FIRUA AL - B (@) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
TERAFUEI MRS o recoverable on demand and interest-free.

b) RZFE——F=A=1+—HHEEH (b) Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2012 are
BARFEEHINMBREEINZE set out on pages 131 to 133 of the financial statements.
21335 °

14 Htt & @EE 14 Other Financial Asset

HemEESEFNEREBNEE Other financial asset represents a principal protected structured

MRAEE  ZEBEX S REER 2 H note placed with financial institution which is subject to call

BZRBIETEREEEENRR - & option at the discretion of the financial institution before

B EREEWE - WRREHIRTTE the maturity dates. Interest is receivable on a quarterly basis

EFRBENFBBEGE - and calculated at variable interest rates with reference to the

London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR").
15 &8 15 Inventories
(@) srEMBRAKRMRNEFEE R (@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position
comprise:
AEE
The Group
—ZT——F —T—F
2012 2011
5 Fr
$000 $'000

Rk Food and beverages 29,745 29,408

JEFEM - BEMER Consumables, packing materials and

H s other sundry items 3,738 3,679
33,483 33,087

90 KIREEBEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



15 ER(E)
(b) BRAEZ NG ESELFAOT

15 Inventories (continued)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

—E-—F —T——F
2012 2011
Fx Fit
$'000 $'000
BEEFENRESE Carrying amount of inventories sold 517,576 469,547
FEMR Write down of inventories 383 282
517,959 469,829
16 FEUTRRRR 3L fth FE U 3% 16 Trade and Other Receivables
rEE AT
The Group The Company
—E-Cf ZR——% ZEZ--F —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
5 i 5 i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
JRE MR B R0 At PR MR Trade and other debtors 6,883 7,89 = -
BEfifdke Rental deposits paid 17,058 16,489 - -
BEMBRZ Deposits and prepayments 33,212 23,400 3,845 225
FEMHT S A AR Amounts due from subsidiaries = - 73,576 89,201
57,153 47,785 77,421 89,426
(@) BRECDHT (a) Ageing analysis

TR ¥R HA 2R &Y B X B S A0 L At JE Wk &
hEEREERR(SIRREER)  H
REZ A EARE DN T

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors (net of
allowance for doubtful debts), based on the invoice date, with
the following ageing analysis as at the end of the reporting

period:
AEE

The Group
—E——F T ——4F
2012 2011
Fx T
$'000 $'000
—&=+H 1 to 30 days 3,180 3,104
=+—&h+H 31 to 90 days 321 169
ht+—z=—8/N\+H 91 to 180 days = 21
—BNt+—ZE2=F~1THA 181 to 365 days 1 1
3,502 3,295
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

16E&E%ﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%%§

(@ B

AR e AT (4

$EIEE%L THER ST BINAR
TREH - ARBE T4 %%R%Wm%
BENF=tHEL+HEANEEEL

{ﬁl‘&BT/\/H E
JE LA B SR B BB A 1B B BR P B R AR 2R AT

e EAEBERAKEEESEN T8
MRER - BRREEEESEETH
FEWER R (2B 1K) - BE T —
—ERZFE-——F=ZA=+—RHLEEF
B AEEWESRGHBEKERNE
KRB o

FERE R FEULBR TR
FEME R kR & HbAR AR E Y FE U AR R AR
BT

16 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)

(a)

Ageing analysis (continued)

The Group’s sales to customers are mainly on cash basis. The
Group also grants credit terms of 30 to 75 days to certain
customers to which the Group provides catering services.

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss
is written off against the trade debtor directly (see note 1(k)).
During the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group
did not record any material impairment losses in respect of its
trade debtors.

Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither individually
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

REE

The Group
—E-fF —E——F
2012 2011
SFoT Tt
$'000 $'000
JE RS RE Neither past due nor impaired 3,157 2,626
wEI R —{E A Less than 1 month past due 336 634
ME—=={EA 1 to 3 months past due 7 30
BE= %A A 3 to 6 months past due 1 4
BENET=EA 6 to 12 months past due 1 1
345 669
3,502 3,295

FEi B Sl (B A0 PR WK BR SR B T
RCENEFREEES °

HPRA

£ 281 HA{E JE R (E B FE U AR R R - = ok
AEBBERMEBERN —FBUE
F-BBERS REAEER @R
EEERWEBEE  MABERNKER
AR 2 BURE - P AEZA R EHRRE
B o REEYELELERMETH K
i e

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired relate to
a number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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16 Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
(d) The amounts due from subsidiaries of the Company are
unsecured, recoverable on demand and interest-free.

RITERMR L 17 Bank Deposits and Cash
KR NG|
The Group The Company
—Z--f T——% ZB--f _B——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
T T T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RITIER Deposits with banks 136,359 160,919 = -
FITFERMRE Cash at bank and in hand 128,947 92,791 259 222
BISARR R AT ) Bank deposits and cash in the
BITERNRE statement of financial position 265,306 253,710 259 222
A BERNRITER Less: Pledged bank deposits - (2,716)
BERERERMTNERS Cash and cash equivalents in
MR EEY the consolidated cash flow statement 265,306 250,994

MN_BE——F=A=+—8  —UB<
FZHRERBREARBIAEANER
309,0007T /& MA #R 17 7F 52,716,0007T 1E
AR - EEERERBE_T——F
A=+ RUEFERBEE MEH
FRNEER -_T——F=A=+—H
B o

As at 31 March 2011, bank deposits of $2,716,000 were
pledged to a bank to secure a loan of $309,000 borrowed by
an independent third party food processing contractor. Such
loan has been fully repaid during the year ended 31 March
2012 and the pledge of the deposits has been released as at
31 March 2012.

& 3 PO ¥ 0 L it B £+ 5% 18 Trade and Other Payables
AEE PN
The Group The Company
=F-=F ZF—F -B--fF T F
2012 2011 2012 2011
T Fr T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
JERBRFAER & A Creditors and accrued expenses 224,376 217,947 1,619 1,736
Bl SRS Rental deposits received 813 873 - -
FEFTHIB A RIFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 27,875 27,875
REENATENERAR Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost 225,189 218,820 29,494 29,611
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments
(FEF25()() (note 25(a)(v)) 915 740 - -

226,104 219,560 29,494 29,611
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18 Trade and Other Payables (continued)

All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due to
subsidiaries) are expected to be settled or recognised as income

or are repayable within one year.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors, based
on the invoice date, with the following ageing analysis as at the

end of the reporting period:

EE

The Group
—E-—fF —E——%F
2012 2011
T Tt
$'000 $'000
—&=+H 1 to 30 days 67,177 66,804
=+—&h+H 31 to 90 days 2,828 992
ht+—z=—8/N\+H 91 to 180 days 303 1,100
—BNt+—Z2=F~t+HA 181 to 365 days 79 53
—FLAE Over one year 990 961
71,377 69,910

AN ARSI B A R IR AR - %
B WARAERERMSER -

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The amounts due to subsidiaries of the Company are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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19 Bank Loans

At 31 March 2012, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

BEREAAT
REME
The Group
—E-C-F —T—F
2012 2011
Fr Tt
$'000 $'000
—FREHEEN Current portion of term loans
TEHE R H BIEIE due for repayment within one year 5,024 10,908
—FEIEBEENTERER Term loans due for repayment
after one year:
——FREMFA — After 1 year but within 2 years 5,077 5,024
—MFRERFA — After 2 years but within 5 years 17,037 19,158
—RHF& — After 5 years 3,880 6,836
25,994 31,018
IRITERESE Total bank loans 31,018 41,926

NRZZE——F=A=+—H8 " RTEXR

At 31 March 2012, the bank loans were secured as follows:

FEABEROT -
rEE
The Group

= =%
2012 2011
T 7
$'000 $'000

RITER Bank loans
—BHEA — Secured 23,418 27,430
— IR — Unsecured 7,600 14,496
31,018 41,926

RZE—Z—F=A=+—H  LiiZFHn
RITERUAREENYEEABR (M T

11(e)) °

At 31 March 2012, certain of the above bank loans were
secured by charges on properties of the Group (note 11(e)).
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AEBERREE ¢ RIS M
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BEREBHEET
AEEZRBEBCR B AESFEE
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B RERESE BEEMERES
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20,0007T ° A SRR ARTE S E
q:: °

RIBEWSEEZRIER  AREHER
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Y FUE HEBURIRGT BIEVERER o

RIREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Bank Loans (continued)

Certain of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group’s statement of
financial position ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants.

Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in note 25(a)(ii). As at 31 March 2012, none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached
(2011: none).

Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme ") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees in Hong Kong under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of $20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Employees engaged by the Group outside Hong Kong are
covered by appropriate local defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the local labour rules and regulations.
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21 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 18
September 2002 (the “2002 Option Scheme”) under which
the Directors are authorised, at their discretion, to invite any
Director (including Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director) or any employee of the Company or
its subsidiaries or any consultant, agent, representative, advisor,
supplier of goods or services, customer, contractor, business ally
and joint venture partner to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company at a price which shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
offer; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share. Save as determined by the Board
and provided in the offer of the relevant options, there is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before an
option can be exercised under the share option scheme. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

On 7 September 2011, the Company terminated the 2002
Option Scheme and adopted a new share option scheme (the
“2011 Option Scheme"”) on the same date. As a result of the
termination, no further options may be granted under the 2002
Option Scheme but the options that have been granted and
remained outstanding as of that date under the 2002 Option
Scheme remain effective. No option was granted under the
2011 Option Scheme during the year.
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(a)

(%)

AT RESFERTHBREN
e MEBRESEBEEIMNRMN

21 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
delivery of shares:

FIBRESQOHR
BREHE Average
e il=p- Number of TR contractual
Date granted options Vesting conditions life of options
RYERBIE -
Options granted to Directors:
- ZZETAFMANR 1,000,000 AR-_T-—TFOMA—HE 7.0%F
—E—R"F=A=+—H
HES T HATTE
— on 8 April 2009 1,000,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years
during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016
- —Z-FF=A—H 400,000 AR-ZE——F—H—RZE 6.84F
ZE—RE+TZA=+—H
MRS AETTE
— on 1 March 2010 400,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.8 years
during the period
from 1 January 2011
to 31 December 2016
BT B EVBAE -
Options granted to employees:
— “ZTAFMAKE 800,000 AR-ZE-EFOARRAZE 6.0
—E—+FMHAMA
RS AEATTHE
— on 6 April 2009 800,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.0 years
during the period
from 5 April 2010
to 4 April 2017
- ZZETAFMANE 2,358,000 AR-Z—ZFHUA—BE 7.0
—E-RF=ZA=T—H
B D AEATTE
— on 8 April 2009 2,358,000 Exercisable in five tranches 7.0 years

RIREEBER DT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016



21 UESHRANDLUKRGHEERMBES 21 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(%)
(@) AT REZFERTHERED BRRA

&  (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the

o FMEBRESESREERNKRN year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical
& (&) delivery of shares: (continued)

FHERES R

BREHE Average

BFEH Number of TSR contractual

Date granted options Vesting conditions life of options

BT RENBE (&)

Options granted to employees: (continued)

- “ZTAFHAMNA 95,000 AR=ZZ-ZFHA—RE 6.9%F
—E-R"F=ZA=+—H
HE S IEATTE

— on 4 May 2009 95,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.9 years

during the period
from 1 April 2010
to 31 March 2016

- —ZETNFLATH 90,000 IR-ZE—ZFEA—BE 6.74F
—ZZE—RERA=TH
B n A EATTE

— on 10 July 2009 90,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.7 years

during the period
from 1 July 2010
to 30 June 2016

- ZZ-ZEF+-A++H 50,000 AR-—E—F+-A+tHE 5.94F
—ZE-N\F+—-A+E
HE D A#ATTE

— on 17 December 2010 50,000 Exercisable in five tranches 5.9 years

during the period
from 17 December 2011
to 16 November 2018

- “ZE——%-A+XAH 100,000 ARZT—ZF_A+REE 4.0%F
—E—tF_A+AA
HE S LHEATTE

— on 16 February 2011 100,000 Exercisable in five tranches 4.0 years

during the period
from 16 February 2012
to 15 February 2017
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21 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical

(&) delivery of shares: (continued)
FIERES QR
BREHE Average
®FEH Number of TR contractual
Date granted options Vesting conditions life of options
BT EEMNERE (&)
Options granted to employees: (continued)
- —Z——F@A=-+NR 800,000 AR-ZZE-——FHA-+\HE 6.1
—E-NEFERAZ++A
HAfE > T AT T
— on 28 April 2011 800,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.1 years
during the period
from 28 April 2012
to 27 May 2019
- ZE——FmA=+)N\H 100,000 ARZZE——FtH—RAZE 3.2
ZE—RFRA=TH
Hfn AEATTE
— on 28 April 2011 100,000 Exercisable in five tranches 3.2 years
during the period
from 1 July 2011
to 30 June 2016
- —ZE——FHANA 800,000 ARZZE——FRANBZE 6.0
—ZE-hEFERANH
RS AETTE
— on 9 May 2011 800,000 Exercisable in five tranches 6.0 years
during the period
from 9 May 2012
to 8 May 2019
#Et 6,593,000
Total 6,593,000
RRFEEBRAA

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share

options are as follows:

—B-=f —T——F
2012 2011
nfEFE FERERE T fE Rk
TEE #HE TE(E EgE|
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
TR F %
‘000 ‘000
EFRITE Outstanding at the beginning of the year $6.58 4,893 $6.44 5,720
FREET Granted during the year $10.90 1,700 $10.92 150
FRBITHE Exercised during the year $6.52 (1,085) $6.29 (505)
FRE LMK Lapsed during the year $6.82 (698) $6.56 (472)
FRRITHE Outstanding at the end of the year $8.09 4,810 $6.58 4,893
FERATE Exercisable at the end of the year $6.73 606 $6.30 527

REEANEITERBRERITE B A INE
FHRREA11.3270( —F——4F : 8.66
JT) °

MN-B—-—F=A=+—BKRTEER
ERITEEAES.097(—F——%F : 658
T0) 0 MANE I FIgR A& LI HBR A4.414F
(ZF——F : 489%F)

BN AR EBEMRR

BB TREERERGNAAEBES
SEMBRTEBENAABEFE - M
BYBRENGSAALEBERKE=R
AFEEIEE - WASEEEN S X
RAEZELNBAZE - —IAAHE
BREBEMEHRRITERNRE -

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was $11.32 (2011:
$8.66).

The options outstanding at 31 March 2012 had weighted
average exercise price of $8.09 (2011: $6.58) and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.41 years (2011: 4.89
years).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on a trinomial lattice model.
The contractual life of the share option is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the trinomial lattice model.
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21 Equity-settled Share-based Transactions (continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)

R-B——F R=B——% R-B-—F

mMA=+NH MA=+N\RH FAAA
s il ) BT g id:
BB 1 BB B AE
Options Options Options
granted on granted on granted on
28 April 28 April 9 May
2011 2011 2011
BRENAAEENBRE Fair value of share options
and assumptions

REFEEMAREE Fair value at measurement date $1.26 $0.94 $1.19
&t B8 Share price $10.86 $10.86 $10.72
1TEE Exercise price $10.91 $10.91 $10.88
SELENE IS Expected volatility 20.16% — 8.69% — 19.82% —
25.25% 23.99% 25.01%

FER AR (BN E A =B A B Option life (expressed as weighted

FREY R By FR 89 DN 7 ¥5 BARR ) average life used in the modelling

under trinomial lattice model) 3.00 Fyears 2.18 Fyears 3.00 Fyears
TEEARR B Expected dividend yield 4.44% 4.44% 4.44%
ERERR AR (LAINERE S Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange 0.23% - 0.09% — 0.24% —
SIERER) Fund Notes) 1.74% 1.46% 1.63%

FERR B R RAKIBIE LN B R (ARG At
B IR EIR A EMAE) W E
PIZRA RFRESNERIREHR AN
FMETAERHR A ELFARREL - B
HRERZKEELBRESTE - THH
ABRROESH R EEBLEMGAOR
ffBE -

BRERRE-BEREEHERT 58
PRERHRBER THNAABERL
EAF RIETRGRM - BRENR T AEHE
BRI IS IR IR B ©

RIREEBER DT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividend vyield is based on historical dividends. Change in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair
value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share option grants.
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(a) #ZRAMBANKARHARHIES

22 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position

position represents:

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial

REE
The Group
—E-=F —T—F
2012 2011
Fr Fit
$'000 $'000
REEBEBFISHERS Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year 21,209 21,737
BT E S Provisional Profits Tax paid (15,485) (8,667)
5,724 13,070
N FERISTHEBE R Balance of Profits Tax provision relating to prior years 919 919
6,643 13,989
hEIRIA PRC taxation 115 289
TEE R —F NSRBI FIIE Amount of taxation expected to be settled
within one year 6,758 14,278
K&K Representing:
A Bl A EAR 1 Current tax recoverable (8) (47)
FET AR BT IR Current tax payable 6,766 14,325
6,758 14,278
(b) EERELERIBEEMNBE : (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
b NS
The Group The Company
—E--f ZT——% —Z--F ZT—F
2012 2011 2012 2011
T T T Fr
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ERMBRARERNELCIEEE 58 Net deferred tax assets recognised on the
statement of financial position (780) (663) (780) -
ERMBHARERNELCHEE®FE Net deferred tax liabilities recognised on the
statement of financial position 6,621 8,507 - -
5,841 7,844 (780) -
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22 MBRARFRTHRBR(E) 22 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised

in the consolidated statement of financial position and the

(b) BERERBELERAEEMAE : (&)
EEGEMHEINRKRERNETHIA(E
E)/ BENERSINHE-T——4F

RZZE——F=A=+—RHILFEEH movements during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011
LU are as follows:
REE
The Group
il HEEE
REWE HEREn  AIHRm
B FERHE  ARNE k]
Depreciation
allowances Future
Revaluation of in excess benefit
investment  of related of tax
properties  depreciation losses Total
Fr Fr T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RE TSR ENETHE Deferred tax arising from:
RZZE-ZFNA—H At 1 April 2010 376 7,726 - 8,102
TrakaERPRIIZ/ (Gt A) (3E6(a) Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
income statement (note 6(a)) 552 (147) (663) (258)
R-E——F=A=1+—H At 31 March 2011 928 7,579 (663) 7,844
FEE
The Group
REME HBITED AERIN
Bt WEEHE  ARAFE B
Depreciation
allowances Future
Revaluation of in excess benefit
investment  of related of tax
properties depreciation losses Total
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RE IS BRELESE Deferred tax arising from:
RZZE——&mA—A At 1 April 2011 928 7,579 (663) 7,844
A laERPRIIZ/ (GIA) (HiF6@)) Charged/(credited) to the consolidated
income statement (note 6(a)) 130 (2,016) (92) (1,978)
BN Credited to the exchange reserve = = (25) (25)
RZZ-——F=A=+—H At 31 March 2012 1,058 5,563 (780) 5,841

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b) DHERBRLEHRBEEMEE (&)
EEMBIARERNETRAEEN

22 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the

HKHDMEEE T —F=A=+— statement of financial position and the movements during the
HIFEEZsHmT : year ended 31 March 2012 are as follows:
¥ NN
The Company
PR
AR
RIRRIZ
Future benefit
of tax losses
Fr
$'000
RETHISENELERE : Deferred tax arising from:
R-E——fFmA—A At 1 April 2011 -
FrAMRER &R Credited to the income statement (780)
RZZE——F=A=+—H At 31 March 2012 (780)
RERWIELERBEE ¢ (c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
AEE NG|
The Group The Company
—B--f —E——f ZB-ZF —T——F
2012 2011 2012 2011
T T T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
AMRERER Deductible temporary differences 2,726 2,518 - -
ZEREANTIEEE Accumulated unused tax losses 37,151 41,881 - 4,730
39,877 44,399 - 4,730

REB AR LA B IR E 18 K E T8
XA R HR T I £ R AR A BRI T
MEAEE  ARAKEEEER/N =
T-_F-ZA=1+—8 HEARKEE
B N T B B N AR BERE 1S A R A Y
BRABEHARRET G - RIFEBRTH
& BERIARE BN REMARY

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of the above tax losses and deductible temporary differences
of certain subsidiaries as management of the Group considers
that it is not probable as at 31 March 2012 that future taxable
profits against which the losses can be utilised will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entities. The tax losses do not
expire under current tax legislation.
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22 RBIRRERTRHOFRER(E)

(d) RERNELEHEAE
R-TE——F=ZA=+—8 BEWE
RNEARDBEFERE R £ 52,742,000
T(ZE——F: &) BHRAQAIHE
LEfT AR MR BRI IE B - I
R AR RETE ] B AR R DIKFE -
b MR BE 9 K 5% F AR B i B s AN FE A A
KRR - R AEE274,0000( =T ——
F E)NEERIBAE -

22 Income Tax in the Statement of Financial Position
(continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised
At 31 March 2012, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to $2,742,000
(2011: nil). Deferred tax liabilities of $274,000 (2011: nil) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that profits will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.

23 ¥fi 23 Provisions
AEH
The Group
e —
2012 2011
5 Fr
$'000 $'000
KRR & XEE Provision for long service payments 16,160 12,760
HESFTANSIER A %S Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises 16,122 15,627
32,282 28,387
B BREDRBAME TEAKFIE Less: Amount included under “current liabilities” (6,514) (5,790)
25,768 22,597
() RERBSER (a) Provision for long service payments
AEE
The Group
= =%
2012 2011
Ft FiT
$'000 $'000
RmA—A At 1 April 12,760 12,920
BEEHRRREINER Additional provisions made 4,200 608
BB AN EE Provision utilised (800) (768)
R=A=+—8H At 31 March 16,160 12,760
KREFEEERAT

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(a)

Provisions (continued)

Provision for long service payments (continued)

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group
is obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to employees who have
completed at least five years of service with the Group. The
amount payable is dependent on the employees’ final salary
and years of service, and is reduced by entitlement accrued
under the Group’s retirement scheme that is attributable to
contributions made by the Group. The Group does not set aside
any assets to fund the above.

M ES e BB A AN ZEE (b) Provision for reinstatement costs for rented premises
rEE
The Group
—E-=F —EB——%F
2012 2011
5 7
$'000 $'000
RUA—AH At 1 April 15,627 15,000
EEHEMEINERE Additional provisions made 1,169 1,341
BB AMNERE Provision utilised (674) (714)
—A=+—H At 31 March 16,122 15,627
$E BEEFITIWHEEBROER - K Under the terms of the rental agreements signed with landlords,
E /AR ERETE & & B R IR R (8 the Group shall remove and re-instate the rental premises at

fﬁfﬂi"fiﬁﬁﬁ B RAR AN R AR SR BRI o
At - AEEE s IEMKEEREEK
RIZEAEEEHEL 724 -

AR
A

74 58 B 2 2 0 5 AR P B 5 S
RBE BN - BN FAE M
BMHEBF -

24

the Group's cost upon expiry of the relevant rental agreements.
Provision is therefore made for the best estimate of the expected
reinstatement costs to be incurred.

Capital and Reserves

The Group

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
48.
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24 EXFNRE(E)

(b) AN
A mE Bl #E 21 ) 4B K B 0 10 R o BB
SRR EBFHBHIIN T

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(b) The Company
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the reporting

period are set out below:

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

RE  ROEE HAR% AREE  REE g
Share Share Contributed Capital  Retained
capital  premium surplus reserve profits Total
it r Tr T r r r
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RZZ-ZEMA-H At 1 April 2010 125,687 450 44,260 4439 168486 343322
TERRREDRE Divicends approved in respect of the previous year ~ 24(c)ii - - - - (35203 (35203
FEERERORE Dividends declared in respect of the current year 24(0)) - - - - (3519%)  (35,19)
REERR Profit for the year - - - - BT 7367
RERREEZTHRG Shares issued under share option scheme () 505 2671 - - - 3,176
E1BR Issue expenses - (44) - - - (44)
IMEREENURNARZEMTS  Equity-settled share-based transactions - 610 - 890 - 1,500
EEER SR Repurchase of own shares
s - par value paid 24(d)i) (778) - - - - (778)
~BEENRSHA ~ premium and transaction costs paid 24(d)i - (3,687) (2,989) - - (6,676)
R-Z——F=f=1-H At 31 March 2011 125,414 - N7 5329 171,254 343,268
R-E——5mA-A At 1 April 2011 125,414 - 41,271 5329 171254 343,268
LEERRENRS Dividends approved in respect of the previous year  24(c)fi - - - - (55326 (55326)
TEEEERNKE Dividends declared in respect of the current year 240l = - - - (794 (27,290
TEEET Profit for the year - - - - 16589 165,829
BEERETSRTNRE Shares issued under share option scheme 241d)() 1,085 6,002 - = = 7,087
B1ER Issue expenses - (69) - - - (69)
NEREERNRNAERNRS  Equitysettled share-based transactions - 1,130 - 85 - 1,215
EEASRN Repurchase of own shares
-EfmE — par value paid 24(d)i (1,999) - - - - (1,999)
-BENEERZHHE — premium and transaction costs paid 24(d)i - (7,063)  (13,089) - - (2015
RZZ-ZE=A=1-H At 31 March 2012 124,500 - 28,182 5414 254463 412,559
KREFEEERAT
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24 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(c) Dividends
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

—2-CF 5
2012 2011
Fr T
$'000 $'000
BEIR & THF B S & R22.01l Interim dividend declared and paid of 22.0 cents
(ZZ——4% :20.0fl) (2011: 20.0 cents) per share 27,294 25,140
BEEREXNEEANFBREGRE Special interim dividend declared and paid of nil
(ZZ——%F :8.0fl) (2011: 8.0 cents) per share = 10,056
RIFERERERZ D RARIARE Final dividend proposed after the end of the
FhE38.00L(=ZF——4 : 32.01l) reporting period of 38.0 cents
(2011: 32.0 cents) per share 47,310 40,132
PNREPEREZEDRERIRDLE  Special final dividend proposed after the end
FR%40.00L( =T ——4 : 12.01l) of the reporting period of 40.0 cents
(2011: 12.0 cents) per share 49,800 15,050
124,404 90,378

MBE_ZT——FNA=1+BIENAE
BARFEREmMS  REE=ZT——
FRA=ZTRHIENE AT ERER
A HARR BB ARF EAZE RIS R
58 2 T H) = %8202,0007T © 236
IEREBERD B ELFERN)DE
B R4 AN(iT) T T {50 B A e T JE B T 3T AR
A ABMLBIARE -

R s PERREZED IR RS
KR Bl R B RS S 8 R A 3R o B A R By
ERREE -

In respect of the interim dividend for the six months ended
30 September 2011, there is a difference of $202,000
between the interim dividend disclosed in the interim report
for the six months ended 30 September 2011 and amount
approved and paid during the year which represents
dividends attributable to (i) shares repurchased and (i) new
shares issued upon the exercise of share options, before the
closing date of the register of members.

The final dividend and special final dividend proposed after
the end of the reporting period have not been recognised
as a liability at the end of the reporting period.
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24 EXEMREE(E)

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(o BB (&) () Dividends (continued)

(ii) Eﬁ(‘_t —HHFE - A FEZE (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
R TR K2 Tl e iR R AVAR B attributable to the previous financial year, approved and

paid during the year
B —T——F
2012 2011
5 71
$'000 $'000

BRLE—MHER  YRAFERE
RS AR S B 132,010
(ZF——4 : 28.0l)

BN E—FHEE  YRARFEZAE
RS B IR B B Ak 12,01l

Final dividend in respect of the previous financial

year, approved and paid during the year,

of 32.0 cents (2011: 28.0 cents) per share 40,237 35,203
Special final dividend in respect of the previous

financial year, approved and paid during the year,

(Z2—F: %) of 12.0 cents (2011: nil) per share 15,089 -
55,326 35,203

REBEE_T——F=A=+—HIF In respect of the final dividend and special final dividend
Jﬁﬂ’\]ﬂiﬂﬂﬂﬁ,%\&ﬁﬁlJﬂiﬁﬂﬁi%\ﬁﬁﬁ ' for the year ended 31 March 2011, there is a difference
RN EFEMBREBEENRPRE of $144,000 between the final dividend and special final
#%%'Jﬂi,ﬁﬂﬁx%éﬁi$fﬁr1‘§/ﬁﬂiﬁﬁ’] dividend disclosed in the last annual financial statements
78 2 MR Z &E144,0007T © 2IEFE and amount approved and paid during the year which
T IR D B B FERIG)E B represents dividends attributable to (i) shares repurchased
B R4 RN T {50 B A e T JE BT AR and (i) new shares issued upon the exercise of share options,

M A AR S o

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

before the closing date of the register of members.



24 EXRMRE(E)

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d) B&AR (d) Share capital
—2--F —T——F
2012 2011
BHEE 2E BhHEE b
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
T B T T FiT
‘000 $'000 ‘000 $'000
EERAE Authorised:
FREEITE B Ordinary shares of $1 each 240,000 240,000 240,000 240,000
EETRMZRA Issued and fully paid:
REA—H At 1 April 125,414 125,414 125,687 125,687
IR BIBA TR (PR () Shares issued under share option scheme (note (i) 1,085 1,085 505 505
1 BB AR 17 (PR =R (Gi)) Shares repurchased (note (ii)) (1,999) (1,999) (778) (778)
MW=A=+—H At 31 March 124,500 124,500 125,414 125,414
BaE - Notes:

() REBFEEAE BIEITHRD

RFENERET B ARBAR R E AR
4 #£1,085,0008%( —Z ——4 : 505,000
B o BEA7,087,0000( —E——4 ¢
3,176,0007T) + E11,085,0000( = F—
—4%F : 505,00070 ) ’E ABRAER - MR T
#96,002,0007L( =& — — 4 : 2,671,000
70 ) RIEE ABR AN & B AR © 1,130,0007T( =
T——1% 1 610,0007T) EAREH FE1(p)i)
FT5I B EER R E AR EE A RN EER -

(i) Share issued under share option scheme

During the year, options were exercised to subscribe for 1,085,000
(2011:505,000) ordinary shares in the Company at a consideration
of $7,087,000 (2011: $3,176,000), of which $1,085,000 (2011:
$505,000) was credited to share capital and the balance of
$6,002,000(2011:$2,671,000) was credited to the share premium
account. $1,130,000 (2011: $610,000) has been transferred from
the capital reserve to the share premium account in accordance

with policy set out in note 1(p)(ii).
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24 EXRMFE(E)

(d) B&AS(42) (d) Share capital (continued)

MaE (&)
(i) BAKRFEND
(1) EEEBMEHED

BE-_Z——F=A=+—BI*F
g ANRRER AR B A S5 a0

Notes: (continued)

(ii) Purchase of own shares

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(1) Shares repurchased and cancelled

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company
repurchased its own shares on the Stock Exchange as

K follows:

sk BRAR
EERDEE Frit Mg B&E RIEE
Number Highest Lowest
of shares Aggregate  price paid  price paid
%,/ B Month/year repurchased  price paid  pershare  per share
T T T
$000 $ $
—T——F0A April 2011 298,000 3,257 10.98 10.84
—T——%1A May 2011 411,000 4,408 10.86 10.64
—T—FN\A August 2011 431,500 4,855 11.50 11.02
—T—FNA September 2011 395,000 4,159 11.02 9.30
—Z-——-%—f February 2012 271,000 3,110 12.00 10.80
—“Z-——-%=H March 2012 192,500 2,294 12.50 11.72

Fak Total 1,999,000 22,083

BN ERBEEEN  BlAR
RINBRITRACHEERXZE0E
AP RIEE o BEEBERR (D AT A A
B &R 5K 7A20,084,0007t( =& —
— F 1 6,637,0007T ) }268,0007T( =
T ——4F :39,0007T) B2 RIEAR
AR ANEBAREE IO

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The repurchased shares were cancelled and accordingly the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value of these shares. The premium and transaction
costs paid on the repurchase of the shares of $20,084,000
(2011: $6,637,000) and $68,000 (2011: $39,000) respectively
were charged to the Company’s and the Group’s reserves.



24 EXRNfFEE) 24 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(d) B&AS(42) (d) Share capital (continued)
5T (&) Notes: (continued)
(i) BARERG, () (i) Purchase of own shares (continued)
(2) B ERFHENERG (2) Shares repurchased but not yet cancelled

BRANY  BRFAN
EERNBE  HRARE B=E RiEE

Number of Highest Lowest

shares Aggregate  price paid  price paid

/A% Month/year repurchased  price paid  pershare  pershare

Tr 7T 7T

$'000 $ $

—Z——F=RH March 2012 291,000 3,629 12.50 12.36

NZZE——F=A=+—H  AQF The above repurchased shares have been repurchased by

B [0 8 | i A% (018 18 R Fe Ak aE S8 12 the Company but the share cancellation has not yet been

Fr Bt - AREHEBEITRAR completed as at 31 March 2012. As a result, the nominal

HMBREZ LA D B EE © %Ll R value of these shares was not deducted from the issued share

BB 428 2 51 AL FE U BR SRR H A capital of the Company. The total consideration paid for

FEUR] © these repurchased shares were included in “trade and other
receivables”.
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24 BEXRMFE(E)
(d) PA(4&)
MisE : ()

(i) A3 e B A SR 1 RS A R T TR RO S

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(d) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of

R AE AR the reporting period
®FBH 1THEEAR 1T1EE —E——F —E——F
Exercise Exercise
Date granted period price 2012 2011
JT 2R A
$ Number Number
—ETNFNASNH —E-EFNAAHEZE—+FMNAMH
6 April 2009 5 April 2010 to 4 April 2017 6.30 - 800,000
—ZTThFMNANA T —TFA—HET—R"F=A=1+—H
8 April 2009 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2016 6.26 2,680,000 3,358,000
“ETNFRAMA —EEFNA—HE-_ZT—R"F=A=1+—H
4 May 2009 1 April 2010 to 31 March 2016 6.29 - 95,000
—ETNFEATH —EF+A—HE-ZT—XFA=TH
10 July 2009 1 July 2010 to 30 June 2016 7.69 60,000 90,000
—ET-FTF=H—H —E——F—A—HEZZE—R"Ft+=-A=+—H
1 March 2010 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2016 8.08 320,000 400,000
ZE-TFFA+tER ZE——F+ATtEREZZ—\F+—HA+H
17 December 2010 17 December 2011 to 16 November 2018 10.96 50,000 50,000
—F——%—-A+"H —E-R+ARBE-Z—+tF-A+HHA
16 February 2011 16 February 2012 to 15 February 2017 10.90 100,000 100,000
ZE——FMHAZFNA ZEZHFNAZFNREZZT-NFRA=t+tH
28 April 2011 28 April 2012 to 27 May 2019 10.91 800,000 -
—ET——FHANA —FRANBEZZT-NFRANA
9 May 2011 9 May 2012 to 8 May 2019 10.88 800,000 -
4,810,000 4,893,000
KIREEBEBRAT

FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



24 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(d) Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

24 EXRNGHE(E)
(d) PeA(4E)
BisE : (48)

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the end of

(iif) 3 e B A SR 1 RS A R R T TR OB
PAE IR ()

SEERER T EHEATRERA R
IR EAR MO EF - B BB L AR B R
— AR BRI 21 -

(e) FAEHIMEEMME
() 1718

R RERMER S AR AAAF
ERRMAIEIS0R FISTIEFI B HiE
—NN—F(REVERIFTIRE -

(ii) B

IS BB E P BRI B®R
RFFELMFAAINEEZRE - ARBIR
EH 1O S R EIEE R
et o

(iii) BAZER

RE-NNANFN—IREH  AEE
CIEE NI IRy AN )N
Al e ARBIBANBARNGEE
EFEBRAAREEHITRO EER
LI ARRBHBARE ©

ARRRNBABBRI BFE— N\ —
HRBREREIFRE - REERE—
AN RAPER) * ARFHHA
BERRTAIASIK ©

the reporting period (continued)

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. Further details of these options are set out in note
21 to the financial statements.

(e) Nature and purpose of reserves

(0

(ii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by sections 150 and 157 of the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of PRC operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 1(t).

(ii)) Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a reorganisation in 1999, the former holding
company of the Group became a subsidiary of the Company.
The excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company over the nominal value of the
shares issued by the Company has been credited to the
Company'’s contributed surplus.

The application of the Company’s contributed surplus is
governed by the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus of the
Company is available for distribution.
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24 EARMGEE (4
() fréfAHO M A A
(iii) BN EFF ()

AR ETFIBERT - ARETEEA
BABRRTIRIKERSHELD
K

(@) R RRIR SR S A S 5 B
MBRE

() REENAZEREEAMIRE
BEREDBITRA M E
BREVARAD -

(iv) EX G

BN B REAR B 1 (o)) T ELIA
Bin RERONO SRR - ER
BT ARBRBERENER G
RTEZEENRAEIE -

(v) LHFEEYEG

+ iR B A DA RS
I AR B R TR
B BT -

(vi) A 2 REE

R-ZZTE——F=A=+—H " 7
DEFARNERRENFEERR
#282,645,00000( — & — — F ¢
212,525,0007T) - EE RN FHEHE
RIEEZ D IRALME ZH38.01L %
B RIR BIRR B & IR40.0(l( =T ——
F 0 REM B FA32.01L R BI K B
f& B & 8%12.01L) - A 97,110,000
Jo(—Z——4% : 55,182,0007T) ° &
SERG B AR S B SR MR R AR

g o

RIREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

24 Capital and Reserves (continued)
(e) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(ifi) Contributed surplus (continued)

However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

(iv) Capital reserve

v)

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 1(p)(ii).

Land and buildings revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve comprises the

change arising on the revaluation of property held for own
use upon transfer to investment property.

(vi) Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $282,645,000 (2011: $212,525,000). After
the end of the reporting period, the Directors proposed
a final dividend of 38.0 cents and a special final dividend
of 40.0 cents (2011: final dividend of 32.0 cents and a
special final dividend of 12.0 cents) per share amounting to
$97,110,000 (2011: $55,182,000). These dividends have
not been recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.
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BEAREE
AEEEEEANTIEZANSHEER
BIREMBEN  EMEEEENEBIZEA
@K AR EE i TE B DA RURFE A B FRRCR
BISEE - #ERBRIEHDR -

RZE——HF=H=+—H &x&%EH
48 & 2 4#31,018,000T( — T — — 4 ¢
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24
(f)

Capital and Reserves (continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

As 31 March 2012, the Group has total borrowings amounting
to $31,018,000 (2011: $41,926,000). The gearing ratio,
representing the ratio of total borrowings to the total share
capital and reserves of the Group was 6.2% (2011: 9.0%) at 31
March 2012. The Group had structured note, time deposits and
cash balances as at 31 March 2012 amounting to $267,635,000
(2011: $253,328,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Financial Risk Management and Fair Value

Financial risk management and fair value

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(i) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables, bank deposits and cash at bank.
Management has a credit policy in place and the expenses
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that catering services are provided
to customers with a sound credit history. Sales to retail
customers are made in cash, Octopus or via major credit
cards. At the end of the reporting period, there were no
significant concentrations of credit risk.
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25 ﬁﬁﬁmpﬁ%iﬂ&ﬁﬁ: E{E v';:_/\
(a) SHARERRAAEE(

(i) 1=ZERE (&)

AEEWFERERE - EHRFHMER
CHEBREFREERARINEH
W

BRPMEE27 FREL AR R B LR D BT 2 A
MIRTTHERRE SRR - UK
R—RUBIE =77 R fnBa YR A P
AR ERMARITEMRITIFHK
BRAEMCD NFERER (2EME17)
S AR SR B SR AT EL A FE AR B
FEAEEAERZEERR -

B RSB A F RUSR M E b &
WHrELNEERRNE-FEE
BEATHIINHE6 -

(i) EBE AR

NS

AEERENEEERARNAS
MBSEBTH - BERSBHNE
R ENBREE RN B RS
Sk IR RIS R L TR L
R EBBRALNEER I -
FERNEERTHERADESS
o ARRTHABRROMATE -
FEOAREIR B IR S B - A4t
I BB R AN AEISES
B ARRESNR SR RDES
EFE

TRATIAREE M ARBRIEITER
TS BB EN RS BRI A R
WEIHRE - ZELREBERY
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s B BN BE G RENE
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ARABAREZBEHMIIR o
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- X FEIIHEERATTEIZEIR
[ &R A0 R R AT A £ 3R & th AV
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RIREEEBRAF
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s structured note, time deposits and cash
balances are normally placed with financial institutions of
high credit quality.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 27 and the pledge of bank deposits
to a bank to secure a loan borrowed by an independent
third party food processing contractor which was released
during the year (see note 17), the Group does not provide
any other guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 16.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
Board of Directors when the borrowings exceed certain
pre-determined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirement and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
and the Company’s non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group and the Company can be required to pay.

For term loans subject to repayment on demand clauses which
can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the contractual repayment
schedule and, separately, the impact to the timing of the cash
outflows if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect.
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25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

FEH
The Group
—E-C-F
2012
EESES
FBERESE —F0E  WMERE
FESE RELE —FR  EmFrn EEFR AZFHUE
Total More than More than
contractual 1year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted Within  lessthan  less than More than
amount  cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
FITER Bank loans 31,018 33,457 5,761 5,693 17,957 4,046
Bl Ee Rental deposits received 1,073 1,073 813 260 - -
FERERFFIERTEA  Creditors and accrued expenses 224376 224376 224,376 - - -
FTESRTA Derivative financial instruments 915 1,044 424 341 279 -
257,382 259,950 231,374 6,294 18,236 4,046
FEE
The Group
—T——F
2011
HESS
FERAE —FE  WEME
FHeE REHE —FR EWERN  EBRFAN AENRE
Total More than ~ More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted Within less than less than ~ More than
amount  cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years
T T T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FITER Bank loans 41,926 45,339 11,936 5,740 20,477 7,186
Bliigize Rental deposits received 1,352 1,352 873 479 - -
JENBEZFESTER  Creditors and accrued expenses 217,947 217,947 217,947 - - -
PTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 740 1,634 536 445 640 13
261,965 266,272 231,292 6,664 21,117 7,199
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25 ERREETERAABEE)
Q) CRRABREER AL BHEE

(i) HBEZE R (&

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

b N
The Company
—E-—F
2012
HEES )
IRESME RenesE —FR
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
T FTr T
$'000 $'000 $'000
FERTBR XA ERT B A Creditors and accrued expenses 1,619 1,619 1,619
JEAST B & X R FRE Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,875 27,875 27,875
29,494 29,494 29,494
ZAN/NS]|
The Company
—T—F
2011
ETHIARITIR
A RemBHEEE —FNN
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within
amount cash flow 1 year
T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000
R EBERAEER Creditors and accrued expenses 1,736 1,736 1,736
JEAST B B8 B FRIA Amounts due to subsidiaries 27,875 27,875 27,875
29,611 29,611 29,611

AEEMFEAREEEERT
B AR ERERTIETE
e

(iii)

FIRITERMS © FEERERALR
FIE NPT B ERER - A
SEAEFE A ARG L AEEF
KREMR N B——F=A=+—
B ANEEBETERNERIRA
26%(ZF—F :3.1%) °

RIREEBER DT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

(iif) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises mainly from bank loans.

All bank loans bear interest at market rates.

For the bank loans, when appropriate and at times of
interest rate uncertainty or volatility, interest rate swaps may
be used to assist in the Group’s management of interest
rate exposure. The effective interest rate of the Group’s
bank loans as at 31 March 2012 is 2.6% (2011: 3.1%).



25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iii) Interest rate risk (continued)

25 SREBEERRARMEE
(a) TRAMREENAABEGE)

(iii) =& ()

NEE DT ABE BT R Ef
BH) - WEEREAEBBRNIER
T - EBUEE W E T AE E)F KR R
e R-_E——F=H=+—H "
AEBNFEXEBREONZERY
& %8 /521,467,0000( — T ——4F:
23,307,0007T) - F{EEE & TiR1T
BREOFE - DUBEF RS F
2B o

B B A 40 A AR SR PN A B Hf
HAREF(2HEWE19) R H A
—8 0 HEEEBFENT2.63%E
274%  c R-—E——F=A=+—
B AEEAEIFHAONAARE
/%% A915,0000( ZF—— & :
740,0007T) - B BEEREITE
SR T A WEFAIEMERFME
B FR I (FFE18) ©

MN-B——F=A=+—H " HE
BE R R0, R A 50fE E 2 (B R%
FrEEMAEREZERFTE) K&
E R EEFE G, R AL
52,00070(=Z——% : 89,0007T) °

A EBREDITRA - R EE B
EERERFDLESE  TAER
REFAEASEMBENEZRT
B BYAKERNREREREAE
RABENERRER - NEBRERBIE
g IR EE) - AKER
BEHBREFANTBMNRIENTE
TAMEENRERENREREE
MmE - AERERRRTRG AT E 6
FERNABNREHUN B T hk
WA FELZEER G - D2
A — T ——FHRMEEETT o

Interest rate swaps, denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
have been entered into to achieve an appropriate mix of
fixed and floating rate exposure consistent with the Group’s
policy. At 31 March 2012, the Group had interest rate
swaps with a notional contract amount of $21,467,000
(2011: $23,307,000) to fix the interest rate of certain bank
borrowings so as to reduce the impact of interest rate
fluctuation.

The swaps mature over the next 4.5 years, matching the
maturity of the related loans (see note 19) and have fixed
swap rates ranging from 2.63% to 2.74%. The net fair
value of swaps entered into by the Group at 31 March
2012 was $915,000 (2011: $740,000). These amounts
are recognised as derivative financial instruments and are
included within “Trade and other payables” (note 18).

At 31 March 2012, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s profit after tax by approximately $52,000
(2011: $89,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's profit after tax that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and applied to re-
measure those financial instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk at
the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit after tax
is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expenses
or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.
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H‘T\lA/# /\‘

25 ﬁﬁ!lﬂﬁ"‘ﬁ&"“

(@) &

(/V)

fB{E(
> REREE N AREE
Mﬂ
REBFAHMHINERREZIRE A
FRRAZAS R B4 & TS T AE & M DASN
MEM BN RIRTITF ° 5| BUEE
EBRHEEETERETRARE - 10
RHIREHNAEBR  A5ESHE
VBRI EEREFING - URER
1 F R E IR HKE -

T%%Eitﬁﬁlf’\ﬁ&i,ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ%uﬁ

B S R EHIRE BB AN B 5T
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%éﬁ?jﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬂﬁl\ﬁ%
RREEE - SLHNRIMF - A%EFET?
iRk Fﬁﬁjﬂ’lfﬁ‘bf?ﬁl R
IR © ﬁ?@%ﬁfT@%M$%lE’\]§‘J

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(a) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily
through cash at bank that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily United States dollars and Renminbi. The Group
ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short term imbalances.

The following tables detail the Group’s exposure at the end
of the reporting period to foreign currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using

WEEHMERIMNSE EBNI Bk the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. Differences
FREERER - resulting from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency
are excluded.
rER
INERREEE
(LABHETR)
The Group
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—E-——F —T——F
2012 2011
EYH ARME E AREE
United United
States States
dollars Renminbi dollars Renminbi
Tt T T T
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
WITFERAE 2 Bank deposits and cash 18,557 62,470 24,611 44,024

T AR B R BRI R AR
335 A BT A B AR REE
ERRS R D S - BRAE
H B R B B TR T I B 0
ft o AR + 5 2 T 8B 7L B
o - 7R ETE T AT E R
SHBUEMEALRS -

RIREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

The following table indicates the change in the Group's
profit after taxation and retained profits that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had changed
at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained
constant. In this respect, as United States dollar is pegged
to Hong Kong dollar, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the United States dollar/Hong
Kong dollar exchange rate.



(iv) E% 2 (&)

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(iv) Currency risk (continued)

—B-C-F —T—%
2012 2011

MRBLEIET R R 1% 8 A K2

ERLH REER [Ex A RN
(FEk) i CR) (T%)  #8i/ Cad)
Increase/ Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after taxation in foreign  after taxation
exchange and retained exchange  and retained
rates profits rates profits

T Tt

% $'000 % $'000

ARY Renminbi 5.0 3,124 5.0 2,201
(5.0) (3,124) (5.0) (2,201)

V) 2A(EE
() BAABEIRENEHMTA

RIKBEM RS EANDET
Si—— 2T A #%EIRED
=HArRBEEBHR  TREIR
NABEAENERTAERS
HIEREMREEE HhEE
TRTANAABERSREHE
NABEAENEBEREANRK
BEEANBAZEMETRERD
o BBAMERNT

- F-ER(&SER): RAR
TR T ATEEBRM IS RE
(REHRB)FERIR(EE

- BCELC REUSRTAHE
AETISNRE - IRAMA
BERBAEERERIEEN
AERNTSSB AR GE
B8 RAEE &

- FZEREEER) : KAE
o] B K ) A\ B8 8 30 3F LA AT &7
WIS BIBR ARG ER
MErEAAEE -

(v) Fair values
(1) Financial instruments carried at fair value
The following table presents the carrying value of

financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each
financial instrument categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair

value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments;

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable
market data; and

Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input
is not based on observable market data.
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25 ERREETERAABEE)
(@) eRIEREENARBEE)

V) 2AEEE)

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(v) Fair values (continued)

() BARBEIENSRIAE) (1) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
KEE
The Group
—E-CF
2012
E-EBR EER = g
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fx T T Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
afE Liabilities
PTESBMTA Derivative financial instruments = 915 - 915
rEE
The Group
%5
2011
B—ER FE_EBHR E-ER “Es
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Fr T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
af Liabilities
TESET A Derivative financial instruments - 740 - 740

RERN  ¢RIAVEESE —E
B B_ERNE=ZERHEH
BRI ERER

FRAABEINRNEH T AN
AV ELE]

AR R AR AR K AN S S5 K AN
AT EMETSEE - BH
RZE——FR-_FT——F=A=
T—HHAREBEDRITK -

A K FE AN PN B 2 R SRIR S AR R
IR B MAERE R AR
[, MEE - Bt REEQAE
BEEETK-

RIREEBERDF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED

During the year there were no significant transfers
between financial instruments in Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than
fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company'’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 March 2012 and 2011.

Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable/repayable on demand.
Given these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their
fair values.



25 SMEREERARBRE(E)

() TREBREENMAAEEGE)

(vi)

DA EEAIGEF
TEERMTANQABERKERM
SRIRFTIRE NN RICREREME
EO

RAUEEAREBENNE - —
AREBRRA_TE——F=A=+—
BEBRITREFRSMNFRMG - 5
MEAME TN EEZERTR SR
TH - FTAFENAT

25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(@) Financial risk management and fair value (continued)
(vi) Estimation of fair value
The fair value of derivative financial instruments is
determined by discounting the future cash flows of the
contracts at the current market interest rates.

Interest rate used for determining fair value: —

The Group uses the interest rate curve of Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") as of 31 March 2012 plus
an adequate constant credit spread to discount financial
instruments. The interest rates used are as follows:

AEE
The Group
—E—C—F —E——5F
2012 2011
REEN A ENENEREE Other financial asset at amortised cost 1.96% 1.81%
TESBIT A Derivative financial instruments 0.29% —0.99%  0.34% - 1.94%
(b) ®RITEREER
(b) Categories of financial instruments
REH AT
The Group The Company
—EB-——fF —E=——%F —E-——fF —=——%F
2012 2011 2012 2011
Fx F Fx Fr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
SRMEE Financial assets
B & EMGR Loans and receivables
—JEMR K~ e RIERH - Debtors, deposits
and prepayments 101,874 90,030 3,845 225
— FEU B A RIFE — Amounts due from
subsidiaries - - 355,309 348,035
— DA SR AN A BR Ay A — Other financial asset
CREE at amortised cost 2,329 2,334 = -
—IRITTFERAE S — Bank deposits and cash 265,306 253,710 259 222
369,509 346,074 359,413 348,482
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25 SMEAREERAAREEGE) 25 Financial Risk Management and Fair Value (continued)
(b) €®R T EREERI(E) (b) Categories of financial instruments (continued)
A5 AT
The Group The Company
—E2-=F T ZB-=F T
2012 2011 2012 2011
T T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
LREE Financial liabilities
A RARBERA Financial instruments
BEMemMIA at fair value through
profit or loss 915 740 - -
TREESHR AR Amortised cost
—BlEeZe — Rental deposits received 1,073 1,352 - -
— R FERT B A — Creditors and accrued
expenses 224,376 217,947 1,619 1,736
— FETHIE A RI5RIA — Amounts due to
subsidiaries - - 27,875 27,875
—IRITER - Bank loans 31,018 41,926 - -
256,467 261,225 29,494 29,611
257,382 261,965 29,494 29,611
26 iz 26 Commitments
@ MZT——F=H=1+—HRENMXAK (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 not
TSk IR EER EARENT provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
rEE
The Group
e —T—F
2012 2011
T ¥
$'000 $'000
[EEES] Contracted for 15,278 8,563
EEERRETL Authorised but not contracted for 30,439 32,834
45,717 41,397
RZZE——F=A=1+—HKXENHE Included in capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
RAEBFBRERTREMINTHOPIE 2012 is an amount of $20,170,000 (2011: $23,662,000) for
A4 /95X TE20,170,0000( = &F — — F ¢ the future development of the central food processing plant to
23,662,0007T) ° FZARKREREIBEEAE Y facilitate the Group’s long term business growth.

ElEARENRIRFER

1 26 KIREEBEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED



26 #&iE(E)

(a)

M-B——F=A=+—BKENT XK
SRR NI BOEEIE A RENT ¢
s RZE—=ZF=A=+—H ' &K
EEMEERBEENANEAKRERNM
NAREMEIRER AR B EEHN H A E
/£870,0007T( —Z — — £ : 8,617,000
TL) o FA - ANEB A AN EIEA
RIEARTHRENR DR - WHAZAK
=

R-ZZ—_F=A=+—8 " BEFTA
BRI G BT B A R RN R (E Y2
HERNFEREZEMT -

26 Commitments (continued)

(a)

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2012 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
(continued)

In addition, the Group had other outstanding commitments
of $870,000 at 31 March 2012 (2011: $8,617,000) in respect
of the contracting fee for operation of a fast food restaurant
not provided for in the financial statements. During the year,
the Group has reached an agreement with the contractor to
early terminate the contracting arrangement at no cost of
termination.

At 31 March 2012, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties
are payable as follows:

rEH

The Group
—E-=F —T—F
2012 2011
Fr v
$'000 $'000
—FR Within 1 year 240,275 218,348
—FRERFAN After 1 year but within 5 years 287,824 262,696
hFE After 5 years 17,137 16,113
545,236 497,157

AREBNUKLEHERRILOWE - B
HE—RVTEB—FENF TEA
IRBEDBRES  ERATAKK
HREFme - HENRERT SR
. ARMTSHES EHEEERE
ETI0%E20% (ZE——F : 10%E
20%)EREAEENEERETE - BT
BREELRERA -

AEBELHABLAENE - R_T—
—FE=Zf=+—8  BETATRERKRHD
HAEZEHER BT UNENRESER
TE4R%E 5324,0007T © FTE TRl ERBREY 9
MERRZZE——F=—A=+—HER
JJ: °

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
nine years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased to reflect
market rentals. The contingent rent payments are determined
based on 10% to 20% (2011: 10% to 20%) of the turnover
over the base rents and are excluded from the information
disclosed above.

Part of the leased properties has been sublet by the Group.
The total future minimum sublease payments expected to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at 31 March 2011
were $324,000. All non-cancellable subleases are terminated
as at 31 March 2012.
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27

28

HBAR

N_TE—_F=A=+—H KRRA
RETE2ENBRARESNIZBERK
HAipRITHMEEMAIRITIELIELR

RIREBERE - EERBREMEBE
REHARRBWRENATEETK - B
WEMERE AR AIBEZIERESR
EHNRRNEBAEAMENBRARCIRIA
B AR{EE%877,563,000T( —E——4F :
84,006,0007T) * BHZERAERBE

REE -

7R B A Rk PR R R AR AR A
A RARERAABESEZEA FEE
B MARBXRZER -

EXRABBE XS
BAMBHREREMIOMBEENRZZ R
RN REBEETTT THIE AR

%5

(@) EMPME7PIREE @ BAREEABRD
e RENARRESHFA - Bie
REEEREI B TRAIR(2EHME
5(b)) °

EARFEAN AAF—KHBR A
MFEBBEERAR(HEDEA
—IBME- - BRBLTEBARAR
FREE -FRNEEMESEILA
1,440,00070( =& ——4 : 1,440,000
JL) °

(b)

(© EEAFER  ARR—RKBAAM
BEYARAR(EMLDEAA—EY
¥ -BRABEERBARTIREVE
£ FRELMNES T A208,000
T(ZF——F &) -

EREERN  NAB—FKHBRRIM
AIEBEEARAR(AE]DHEA—E
ME - FIENTRESEEABER
BEEREBMBAL - ZRBLE
BRERRAGLIENERL - FREAEN
4 ¥ HA56,000T(—FE——F
721,0007T) °

RIREEEBRAF
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Contingent Liabilities

At 31 March 2012, guarantees are given to banks by the
Company in respect of mortgage loans and other banking
facilities extended to certain wholly-owned subsidiaries.

As at the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under these guarantee arrangements. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn down
by all the subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees, being
$77,563,000 (2011: $84,006,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantee as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured and there is no transaction price.

Material Related Party Transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions:

(@) Remuneration for key management is the amounts paid
to the Company’'s Directors as disclosed in note 7. Total
remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased
a property from New Champion International Limited
("New Champion”). Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung is a director
of the Company and New Champion. Rental expenses
incurred during the year amounted to $1,440,000 (2011:
$1,440,000).

(c) During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Hibony Limited (“Hibony”). Mr Dennis Lo
Hoi Yeung is a director of the Company and Hibony. Rental
expenses incurred during the year amounted to $208,000
(2011: nil).

During the year, a subsidiary of the Company leased a
property from Front Land Properties Limited (“Front Land”).
The ultimate beneficial owners of Front Land are Mr Lo
Hoi Chun, who is a cousin of Mr Dennis Lo Hoi Yeung,
and his associate. Rental expenses incurred during the year
amounted to $56,000 (2011: $721,000).
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HENRREFEAEER
EENREHEREEZ D RABARKRE
REFRIRERE - BEFEEHIINME
24(c) °

ERfERKEBRE_S——%=A
=t+—HIESFEERET - FEN
HMRBTRERHEE
BEAPBHERTIER  HESFOR
SOEMZRAERE _T—_F=A=
T—RALEFERRER  TORBEARH
TR S RT AN AR B o SE LB
BRE TR EEAEEAFNIAR
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30

Non-adjusting Event after the Reporting Period

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend and a special final dividend. Further details are
disclosed in note 24(c).

Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and
Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective for the
Year Ended 31 March 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments and new standards which
are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2012 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:

EUT RS

R EBARAY
EREEES
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

(BEMBREEADE7FET— R T A - HEE

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures

(BB EHERNE125-ET— PrisHi

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

(BB EADF VRIS — M ERER AR ]
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements

(EBUBRELERDFIR

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

[T A ]

(BB BIMEER)DF105E—T & HFHERE ]

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

(BB BREEADFE12F— TN EMEBPTEERARE ]

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

(BAUBHREENE 13— AR EEFE]
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

(BB GERNE275R
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

(EBGFHERDE195% (e —TTEEEH]
Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits

(B BHmK | (ZFE——%F)

—T——%tHA—A
1 July 2011
—ZT——%—H—H
1 January 2012
—ZE—-F+tA—H
1 July 2012
—T—A%—A—H

1 January 2015

—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013

—E—=%—8—H
1 January 2013

—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013

—E—=%—5—H
1 January 2013

—E—=%—H—H
1 January 2013
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30 ERHERKEBE_ZS—_F=H 30 Possible Impact of Amendments, New Standards and

=+—HLEFEEWBERT - HEH Interpretations Issued But Not Yet Effective for the
MREARBRHTE(E) Year Ended 31 March 2012 (continued)

REBEETEELER] 2B E The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
A s rE R B M TEET & - BB Al the impact of these amendments, interpretations, and new
RlE NREEBRERAEEETNRE standards is expected to be in the period of initial application.
R ERETERECERAEENLE So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
FEMBBAR have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations

and financial position.
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TENE QT

Principal Subsidiaries

(ABHSITR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

A

B3t aye

R & 5
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

BT/
AMEARGFE

Particulars of issued/

RATAMHR A
BOK

Percentage of shares

Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company Principal activity
E# f:
directly indirectly
BERRARAH A PEEREEIT - 100% MERE
Benley Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
Cision Development Limited BE AMREREEIT - 100% EEEE
Cision Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Dormant
ARERINERBR A A 10,000/ B REE T - 100%  RERR
Fairwood (Shenzhen) Hong Kong 10,000 shares of $1 each Investment holding
Development Limited
Fairwood B.V.l. Limited* REERREE/TE 579437REREE  100% - REER
Fairwood B.V.l. Limited* The British 0.01%7T Investment holding
Virgin Islands/ 579,437 shares of
Hong Kong US$0.01 each
Fairwood Consolidated LBRBRES/BE 1REBIET 100% - REARR
Investments Limited* The British 1 share of US$1 Investment holding
Fairwood Consolidated Virgin Islands/
Investments Limited* Hong Kong
ARERE(ER)BERAT Bt ARBREET - 100% HEREER
Fairwood Fast Food Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Restaurant licences holding
(Management) Limited
AREREBRAT FE  100RERREHRAEI0T - 100% @ BEEHRERE
Fairwood Fast Food Limited Hong Kong R579,437MR % FiE Operation of a chain of
EERHBREE0T fast food restaurants
100 ordinary shares of
$10 each and 579,437
non-voting deferred
shares of $10 each
Faiwood Trademark B.V. Limited* ~ EB#BREE/FE 1REBIET - 100% HEEE
Fairwood Trademark B.V.I. Limited* The British 1 share of US$1 Trademark holding
Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
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TEWBAT

Principal Subsidiaries

(A H31T)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

AR, BRfT/  ADARAMERG
NAER RUREE aERFE B TEEK
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and Particulars of issued/  Percentage of shares
Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company Principal activity
ER  BE
directly indirectly

LEURARLT A AEEHREET - 100% EEREE
Finemax Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Operation of a fast

food restaurant
YERRBRAA 3 YREHREET - 100% @ MERE
Great Choice Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
YERRBRAA 3 YREREET - 100% @ MERE
Joybo Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ARERERAT] 3 YREREET - 100% @ MERE
Leon Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
REERERAT] A YREREET - 100% MERE
Maxlane Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
BXRBERRERLA 0 AREREET - 100% EEEX
Professional Institutional Catering Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Dormant
EHERERAT] 3 YREREET - 100% MERE
Profit Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
EEERBRAT 3 AREHREET - 100% @ MERE
Santic Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
RRREREFRAR* i 4,700,000% 7 - 100% @ SEEHRERE
Shenzhen Fairwood Fast Food Limited* The PRC US$4,700,000 Operation of a chain

of fast food restaurants
EAERERAT] & AREHREEIT - 100% WERE
Smarteam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
AHERERAT] & AREREEIT - 100% WERE
Suncity Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
REERERAT] & AREREEIT - 100% WERE
Tacco Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
FEERERAT] & AREHREEIT - 100% WERE
Time Best Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment

RIREEEBRAF
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A

B3t aye

R & 5
Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

BT/
AMEARGFE

Particulars of issued/

RATAMHR A
BOK

Percentage of shares

TEEH

Name of company operation registered capital  held by the Company Principal activity
ER  BE
directly indirectly
BEERARAT] A AREREET - 100% MERE
Union Hero Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment
ERERARRT BE 2RERAEEIT - 100% ¥ERE
Wallam Development Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of $1 each Property investment

(* UERRIAIFHEFHE I EHAIEZ)

(@ M-EBE——FE=A=+—H " FhEFHE
TR SEIEFTEZNK B AR B HRE D A
HARSBENEEXEERBEEEFED
10%(ZF——F :9%) R15% (=T ——4F:

10%) °

(b) BMERREEEMDEHITEERAE -

Companies not audited by KPMG)

(@) At 31 March 2012, the financial statements of the subsidiaries not
audited by KPMG reflect total turnover and total net assets constituting
approximately 10% (2011: 9%) and 15% (2011: 10%) respectively of
the related consolidated totals.

(b) None of the subsidiaries has any loan capital in issue.
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AEERFHBHE
Five-Year Group Financial Summary

(ABESIR)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BE=A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 March

—®-=f =T—% C-T-FF C-TEAF C-BI\F
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Ft Tt FT Tt T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
E4 Results:
B Turnover 1,829,456 1,665,881 1,562,348 1,465,503 1,433,476
feg=pinvil Profit from operations 151,510 147,249 111,718 94,812 121,169
& A A Finance costs (1,756) (2,100) (1,332) (199) (1,361)
BB A ) Profit before taxation 149,754 145,149 110,386 94,613 119,808
FTiS®: Income tax (19,187) (21,307) (17,117) (14,591) (18,781)
AN EHES AR Profit attributable to
e85 A equity shareholders
of the Company 130,567 123,842 93,269 80,022 101,027
EEREE: Assets and liabilities:
EEEE Fixed assets 401,982 400,039 398,892 307,598 306,952
& E & EMTERR Prepayment for
fixed assets - - - 3,683 -
EES Goodwill 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001 1,001
BfEeEs Rental deposits paid 44,721 42,245 40,861 38,742 29,261
HEthemEE Other financial asset 2,329 2,334 2,341 2,341 39,345
EETRIRE B Deferred tax assets 780 663 37 35 25
MEVEE Current assets 355,950 334,629 278,613 248,928 248,693
BEEHAE Total assets 806,763 780,911 721,745 602,328 625,277
mEBAE Current liabilities (244,408) (250,583) (240,315) (202,436) (232,061)
ERBBE Non-current liabilities (58,643) (62,601) (68,840) (25,002) (23,263)
EEFE Net assets 503,712 467,727 412,590 374,890 369,953
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GEE

HE-_ZZ/\F=ZRA=1+—HILFENHES
HFERACHIEERAENEBRREXER(ER
HRER)  UReaBE_2ZENF=A=*
—AIEFEMRANIIHRT RN - KBTI
BOARAE BRI RPELER HHME -

BTEEBRE)ESHIMBERENT
i BERAEMEREREERINTE
HEFNS B R ZTF=-A=+—
B —_ZTAFZA=Z+—HWRTER
5,686,0007T &%5,670,0007C 2 B3k E & &
EFERARBEE  UFEAEE-_ZT——
FZA=T—HIFEMRANIHRAR -

KW EF S EBEFENGHRARLER
A FENEAAT

Notes:

Coupon expenses for the year ended 31 March 2008 has been re-
classified from cost of sales to turnover (as deductions) to conform
with the presentation adopted for the year ended 31 March 2009. The
revised presentation reflects better the nature of these transactions.

Bank loans of $5,686,000 as at 31 March 2010 and $5,670,000 as
at 31 March 2009 has been re-classified from non-current liabilities
to current liabilities to conform with the presentation adopted for
the year ended 31 March 2011 in order to comply with Hong Kong
Interpretation 5, Presentation of financial statements — classification
by the borrower of a term loan that contains a repayment on demand
clause.

However, it is not practicable to reclassify the balances of earlier years
for comparison purposes.
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BT E

Investment Properties Held by the Group

R-ZE——F=H=+—H
At 31 March 2012

It B REF AR HEH
Location Existing use Term of lease
Y

YT

Ef=

B B

S

££1036% 104057 X5/ [k &

Shop Unit Nos. 1036-1040 Shops Medium-term
on Level 2,

Lowu Commercial Plaza,

Guangchang South Road,

Luohu District,

Shenzhen,

PRC

R

Bt HE62E 705

BEXKRE

AFEVMEATRA2EERT

SBASTLRERLFILS -~ L6

L11 R3S EERE AL ER MoRERL ]

Units A1 and A2 on Warehouses and Medium-term
14th Floor of Block A, and car parking

Private Car Parking Space Nos. A3 and spaces

Lorry Parking Space Nos. L5, L6,
L11and L31 on

3rd Floor,

Po Yip Building,

Nos. 62-70 Texaco Road,

Tsuen Wan,

New Territories

RIREEBER DT
FAIRWOOD HOLDINGS LIMITED
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